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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEREPXKE
TREASURER’S REPORT

CIN:R: A

Overview

Persistent uncertainties stemming from the
COVID-19 pandemic continued to pose extraordinary
risks to global health. No community is immune from
this onslaught and the Hong Kong community along
with the University cannot but be adversely affected.
Nevertheless, the University has spared no effort to
mitigate these adverse effects by exercising every
precaution in safeguarding the health and well-being
of all staff and students and laying the foundation for
all to face what is turning into a new normal.

In order to present a more holisticand comprehensive
financial position of the University, the financial
results, assets and liabilities of all wholly-owned
subsidiaries have been consolidated with effect
from the 2020/21 financial year. | am pleased to
report that the University achieved a consolidated
surplus of $2.94 billion for the 2020/21 financial year
and consolidated net assets of $27.62 billion as at
30 June 2021.

Financial Analysis

The financial statements report the income and
expenditure for both recurrent and non-recurrent
activities funded by the University Grants Committee
(UGC) or supported by non-UGC funds. The tables
and charts on pages 6 to 8 provide additional
information and analyses of the financial results
of the University by sources of funding and their
attributions to different categories of activities.
Comments and highlights below only refer to the
operating results of the University.

Operating Results and Financial Position

Income

Total income surged by $1,235 million or 11.3% to
$12,136 million. Government subventions accounted
for $5,536 million, but recorded a decrease of $477
million as compared to the previous financial year,
when the University attained the Eighth Matching
Grant Scheme ceiling of $600 million. Although the
University received a further grant of $130 million
from the Research Matching Grant Scheme during
the year, only $16 million was recognised as income
with the unused portion deferred according to the
prevailing accounting standard and the UGC'’s
Operation Guide.
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Tuition, programme and other fees slightly decreased
by $61 million to $2,298 million, of which 53% was
contributed by non-UGC-funded programmes. Both
UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded programmes
recorded decrease in income, mainly due to
decrease in student enrolment due to the pandemic.
The interest and net investmentincome had a sharp
upturn of $1,853 million or 469.1% and reached
$2,248 million, as a result of the strong rebound of
major investment markets benefiting from ongoing
global economic recovery, improved investment
sentiment and proven effectiveness of the vaccines
against COVID-19. Without the Eighth Matching
Grant Scheme, the overall income from donations
and benefactions was reduced by $148 million
or 11.3%. The donations for various purposes
showed a downward trend, except for the drive for
the teaching hospital project. Income from ancillary
services and other income recorded a net increase
of $68 million, mainly attributable to the increase in
management fee and overheads recovered from a
subsidiary and InnoCentres, after accounting for
the loss of income from student hostels due to low
occupancy in observing social distancing under the
pandemic.

Expenditure

Total expenditure slightly increased by $66 million
or 0.7% to $8,933 million, as the cost of living
adjustment was frozen. Expenditure on learning
and research amounted to $7,097 million and was
consistently maintained at close to 80% of total
expenditure, reaffirming the University’s mission
in attaching great importance to teaching, learning
and research quality. The institutional support
expenditure decreased by $54 million, or 2.9% to
$1,836 million, mainly attributable to the decrease
in expenditure on student exchange programmes
under travel bans and the coming down of student
and staff health services spending from a high
level in the previous year when the pandemic first
emerged.

Operating Results

The University achieved a total comprehensive
income of $3,204 million for the year, comprising
surpluses of $16 million in General and Development
Reserve Fund (GDRF), $125 million in UGC
Matching Grants Fund and $3,063 million in
Restricted Funds.
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Financial Position

The University’s net assets increased by $3.2 billion
or 13.8% to $26.41 billion as at 30 June 2021. Total
cash and deposits with banks attained an overall
increase of $1.39 billion or 9.6% from $14.47
billion to $15.87 billion as at 30 June 2021, paving
the way to meet the investment commitments and
new investment opportunities. Total investments
surged by $1.78 billion or 21.2% as a result of the
strong rebound of investment markets and additional
equity investments made during the year. Other
than investment in financial instruments, a further
capital injection of $0.8 billion was made during
the year to CUHK Health Limited, to complete
the total capital injection of $2.3 billion in support
of the operation of the CUHK Medical Centre
(CUHKMC). In addition, the shareholder’s loan of
$53.5 million made to CUHK Shenzhen Research
Institute Company Limited (SZRIL) was converted
into capital investment in SZRIL in support of the
strategic direction to strengthen our foothold in the
Greater Bay Area development. The net book value
of fixed assets decreased by $72 million or 1.2%
to $5.96 billion as at 30 June 2021, reflecting the
reduction in capital funds and deferred capital funds
by $2 million and $70 million, respectively.

Taking into account the operating results achieved
and inter-fund transfer for the 2020/21 financial year,
the GDRF declined by $23 million to $2.17 billion,
the UGC Matching Grants Fund increased to $2.13
billion, and the Restricted Funds climbed to $22.11
billion, with an aggregate total of $26.41 billion to
support the University’s long-range development in
meeting its goals and missions.

Research Activities

In addition to recurrent grants from the UGC
covering basic infrastructure to carry out research
activities and to fund a certain level of research,
the University had also secured substantial funding
through different sources to support specific
research projects. In the 2020/21 financial year,
$455 million was received from the UGC and its
Research Grants Council, and $935 million from
the private sector and other sources in the form of
sponsorships or donations.

BAEin

8ETST—FA=TH ABREEFEEN=1
—fRr  AEDZT=HNEEATHRE—F&T -
RELBITEFRRBEERT=RATETIEAILZN
BN —BEENtTHEEtTEREE—BAtT/N\Et
FET - REGRERERTIRERBEITER - X
BRANKREAERNBENTER/NTER  AES
R-T—#Z - RBEEMSENIREUALESFRE
1B - RTRESMIARN  XABEFABAFED
XABBEBRERASIEENGT  aHRNBEELRE
BEC+=Fn  UAZHFhAEREE - 1 - K2
BEPAAERFINERATNATF=8021+8T
RRERBREFRKRE - BUAIHUAKEERZRE
RS E - BE"FT_—FA=1+H ' KB
NEEEERBFERD T -E8T  ABEDLZ—
B_ERTARATER  ZEHERMEEEES
REEEERED - BREP —BETAETER -

BE_F_BTEC-MRNFEEERRLES CEER
BR - —RABEREHEE TR =T=88RE=T
—RBtTER  HESEHHENES LAZE"+—F
=F8rx SAEEEAE"BT+—R—TET
ESBHE—ANTHR—TERRT - AUABAEN
REZRRE  ENSERBESMNES -

WS EE

ABREARESEE BRI ERARR WA
REHMNERI > TASHEREEIRBEMRE
B T E"-MHEE  ABEGRESNR
HETHREMENEEHRARERSHNFRT
ABETT; B KB ARBLEME R
YRBHAEGNE=THAEETAREER -



Donations and Benefactions

The University has continued its fund-raising
momentum and successfully raised donations
of $1,160 million in the 2020/21 financial year.
The University is most grateful to the alumni,
donors, sponsors and friends of the University for
their generous financial support for its academic
development, research activities, scholarships,
capital development programmes and developments
in new initiatives.

In addition to the contribution of $547 million in
2019/20, the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities
Trust donated another $780 million in the 2020/21
financial year to support the development of teaching
hospital, academic programmes, scholarships,
prizes and other activities, as well as to enhance
University facilities. The University is again most
appreciative of the continuous support from the
Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust.

Capital Developments

During the financial year, acquisitions amounting to
$473 million were made for fixed assets, including
properties leased for own use, with $314 million
spent on equipment, furniture and fittings for
the purposes of teaching, research and student
development, $116 million on construction-in-
progress of the six blocks of undergraduate student
hostels, provision of new research laboratory space
and teaching complexes, extension of the University
Sports Centre and the Art Museum, and $31 million
on other premises and related enhancement
projects.

The funding request for the Centralised General
Research Laboratory Complex (Block 2) in Area
39 had been re-considered and finally approved by
the LegCo Finance Committee in September 2021.
In meeting the demand for space for undertaking
research and teaching activities, the Centralised
General Research Laboratory Complex (Block 3) in
Area 39, the Innovation and Sustainability Building,
the Engineering Building, and the Teaching Building
adjacent to the Art Museum are at the detailed
design stage.

Self-financed Programmes

Dissemination of knowledge is one of the core
functions of the University. As a public institution and
in fulfilment of its role, the University provides learning
opportunities at sub-degree and postgraduate
levels, as well as lifelong learning programmes, to
complement the UGC-funded academic activities.
The main purpose of the University’s self-financed
programmes is to meet community and societal
needs in life-long learning. With the decrease in
student number due to the pandemic, the tuition
fees, and programme and other fees income from
non-UGC-funded programmes recorded a decrease
of 4.1% to $1,216 million for the year.
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The Way Forward

The University has come through a couple of challenging
years caused by the social unrest as well as the
pandemic, and concluded the 2020/21 financial year
with outstanding results for the Restricted Funds, mainly
due to the sharp upturn of the investment markets.
Nevertheless, the macroeconomic and geopolitical
environments are overcast with uncertainties, placing
additional burden on the continuing struggle against the
spreading of new variants of the coronavirus. In the first
few months of the 2021/22 financial year, the Hong Kong
and China stock markets had already suffered from a
significant downturn.

Putting the headaches aside, | am pleased to report on
the notable achievements of the University. In the recent
release of the results of the Research Assessment
Exercise (RAE) 2020 by the UGC, the University is
pleased to note that the research performances of
many of its disciplines were judged as being of “world
leading / internationally excellent” standard. The RAE
results, which will be used to determine the distribution
of part of the research portion of the UGC block grants
in 2022/23 and beyond, will serve as a useful guide
for the University to achieve the targets and goals for
research excellence with purpose and responsibility,
as laid down in the CUHK Strategic Plan 2021-2025.

The CUHKMC, the city’s first non-profit, private
teaching hospital wholly owned by the University, has
commenced service in phases starting from 6 January
2021. CUHKMC aims to bridge the service gap between
the public and private healthcare systems and to provide
the local community with a new choice of quality and
transparent healthcare services. Joining hands with the
Faculty of Medicine, CUHKMC will assume a major role
in promoting medical innovation and training medical
professionals to achieve its mission of “Pioneering
Solutions in Healthcare”.

The outbreak of the pandemic since the early 2020
has posed unprecedented risks to the world economy.
It is anticipated that the University’s finances will also
be inevitably affected. The University will continue
to be vigilant in its spending and will not compromise
its aspirations to achieve excellence in teaching,
research and knowledge transfers. Under the current
unfavourable circumstances, the University would not
have come this far without the commitment, dedication
and contribution from the staff, alumni and benefactors.
On behalf of the University Council and administration, |
would convey my deepest gratitude to the supporters of
the University and call for your company to stay resilient
in the face of hardships.

Anthony Neoh
Treasurer
19 October 2021
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

EEPxXEB
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 2020-2021
Bf 7% #§ = 2020-2021 (The University X E3)

Total #8%H $12,136 million BHEJT

m Government Subventions
BAFEERD
($5,536 million BEJT)

m Tuition, Programme and Other Fees
28  RERHEMKE
($2,298 million B&t)
m Interest and Net Investment Income
MERREFNE
($2,248 million BEJT)
m Donations and Benefactions
BRI
($1,160 million B&T)
m Ancillary Services Income
FHB RIS WA
($243 million H&Jt)
m Other Income
HAbU A
($651 million HEJT)

Expenditure 3z

Total #2858 $8,933 million BHEJTT

m Instruction and Research
HERAR
($6,451 million EEJT)

m Library
EES:
($284 million B&T)

m Central Computing Facilities
R BRI
($195 million B&ET)

m Other Academic Services
HA BB R
($167 million B&T)

m Management and General
EER—KREBE
($328 million BE&JT)

= Premises and Related Expenses
BFRBEBEXLH
($898 million BE T)

m Student and General Education Services
BER-BRBEEH
($583 million BE&T)
Other Activities
Hih=5
($27 million B&JT)




THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEEPXKE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 2020-2021

Bt 7% #§ & 2020-2021 (The University X &)

Income Analysis IZA 21

Year Ended 30 June 7xB=-1+H(&F#)

Government Subventions BT & B
UGC Matching Grants H{E S #EIS

Tuition, Programme and Other Fees B2 & - :R12 R HAMUNE
Interest and Net Investment Income F 8 &35 & F &S

Donations and Benefactions 1888 K870
Ancillary Services Income EiBNBRFEUIA
Other Income E i A

Total ($ million) #2%E (BEJT)

Expenditure Analysis ZH 21

Year Ended 30 June 7xH=1H(F#)

Instruction and Research 3 K55

Library EE8E

Central Computing Facilities hREE:E

Other Academic Services ELft#E2AR¥E
Management and General B 5 —H3E1E
Premises and Related Expenses 1 £F NBEREXZH

Student and General Education Services B4 N — B E75

Other Activities EfthZEF§
Total ($ million) #2%E (BEJT)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to the following funds

AFEEEENDERRERTIES

Year Ended 30 June 7xH=1H(F#)

General and Development Reserve Fund —#; B HES

Matching Grants Fund Bcii#iBIE
Resrtricted Funds ERES

University Development X ZE &R
General Academic Use —fig#(E2 g
Other Activities E{thZE7%

Research Activities fff35;EE)

New Colleges =Rt

Capital Projects EEIEH

Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries #£85, i8S LSS

Total ($ million) #2%E (BHETT)

(HK$’'M)
5,536
2,298
2,248
1,160

243
651
12,136

(HK$’M)
6,451
284
195
167
328
898
583
27
8,933

(HK$’M)
16
125
3,063

2,356
473
209

52
1
(4)
(34)
3,204

(%)
45.6%
0.0%
18.9%
18.5%
9.6%
2.0%
5.4%

100.0%

(%)
72.2%
3.2%
2.2%
1.9%
3.7%
10.0%
6.5%
0.3%

100.0%

(%)
0.5%
3.9%

95.6%
73.5%
14.8%
6.5%
1.6%
0.3%
-0.1%
-1.0%

100.0%

2020
(HK$'M) (%)
5413  49.7%
600 5.5%
2,359  21.6%
395 3.6%
1,308  12.0%
270 2.5%
556 5.1%
10,901  100.0%
2020
(HK$'M) (%)
6,330  71.4%
263 3.0%
203 2.3%
181 2.0%
342 3.9%
897 10.1%
622 7.0%
29 0.3%
8,867  100.0%
2020
(HK$'M) (%)
(190)  -9.4%
586 28.9%
1,636  80.5%
1,194  58.8%
(2) -0.1%
(32) 1.6%
372 18.3%
71 3.5%
54 2.6%
(21) 1.0%
2,032 100.0%



THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

EEPxXEB
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 2020-2021
81 7% 1% = 2020-2021 (The University X £3)

Analysis on the financial position of the University as at 30 June of 2021 and 2020 are as follows:
REBZ-FRTBZIBHENA=TH - KENMBIRAAAT:
(Expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars MAE#EETHIT)

UGC Recurrent Funds . UGC Non-Recurrent Funds I:l Restricted Funds
BEABRFENE BEASFREENE HRES
HK$'M BEERT
14,000 +
12,000 +
10,000 -
S 4,012
8.000 7 2,630 2,374
6,000 —+
4,000 +
2,000 -+
) (190)
(2,000) -
Income YgA Income YA Expenditure 31 Expenditure 3% H Surplus Surplus / (Deficit)
2021 2020 2021 2020 B B (B18)

2021 2020



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB

TO THE COUNCIL OF THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BERAPEABRES

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong (“the University”), the Trustees
of the four separately established constituent Colleges, namely
The Trustees of Chung Chi College, The Trustees of New Asia
College, The Trustees of United College and The Trustees of
Shaw College, and the University’s subsidiaries (collectively
“the Group”) set out on pages 12 to 120, which comprise the
Consolidated and University Statements of Financial Position as
at 30 June 2021, the Consolidated and University Statements of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure, the Consolidated and
University Statements of Changes in Funds and the Consolidated
and University Cash Flow Statements for the year then ended
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and the
University as at 30 June 2021 and of their financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficientand
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The Council of the University is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information
included in the financial report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Council for the consolidated
financial statements

The Council of the University is responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and for
such internal control as the Council determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Council
is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Council either intends to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Council is assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
its responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This reportis made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Statute 12(7) of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong Ordinance (Cap. 1109), and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Council.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the Group. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

19 October 2021
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEEPNXKE

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

EEWER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

g§E-_S-_—-FXA=THLEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE#TFTTFHIR)

The Group The University
Eamgpn E3
Note KRB KE
PizE 2021 2020 2021 2020
Income KA
Government Subventions BUATERN 4 5,564,444 6,013,349 5,535,778 6,013,349
Tuition, Programme and Other Fees BE  FENHMWE 5 2,299,355 2,360,736 2,297,487 2,358,386
Interest and Net Investment Income F B R%E RS 6 2,382,737 350,318 2,248,261 395,269
Donations and Benefactions BB 7 1,260,465 1,583,054 1,160,299 1,307,792
Ancillary Services Income EHBNARFEUIA 8 256,293 275,795 242,873 270,248
Other Income HAbA 9 1,093,251 571,106 651,399 556,209
12,856,545 11,154,358 12,136,097 10,901,253
Expenditure Xz 10
Learning and Research &1y K FA 5T
Instruction and Research HERRE 6,456,106 6,331,232 6,450,600 6,329,597
Library EE= 283,639 262,371 283,639 262,371
Central Computing Facilities th R EHERE b 195,020 203,202 195,020 203,202
Other Academic Services HAth#H B RS 577,715 287,816 167,158 181,344
Institutional Support REBEHBNARHS
Management and General EBR—REE 601,052 400,794 327,892 342,459
Premises and Related Expenses BFREHZH 1,141,080 914,795 898,332 896,916
Studentand General Education Services BER—RBEER 626,218 675,716 583,274 622,413
Other Activities HfthZE#% 37,665 31,802 26,991 28,524
9,918,495 9,107,728 8,932,906 8,866,826
Surplus before Taxation IRBIRIRER 2,938,050 2,046,630 3,203,191 2,034,427
Income Tax [=ti] 2,798 - - -
Surplus for the Year AEFERR 2,935,252 2,046,630 3,203,191 2,034,427
Items that will not be Reclassified TEEHIEERRAS
to Surplus or Deficit H=IER
Remeasurement of Defined EFEERTEFEE 18.1(v) 942 (2,014) 942 (2,014)
Benefit Scheme
Equity Investments at Fair Value BiREM 2 EW SR 16.623 (61,883) . .
through Other Comprehensive NREAERTES
Income - Net Movement in Investments - IEEhRERE
Revaluation Reserve (Non-recycling) (A oréE[m)
Item that may be Reclassified HEOSHsEERg
Subsequently to Surplus or Deficit sSEiaZIEE
Exchange Differences on Translation of BREBAMEAS] 3,198 _ _ -
Financial Statements of a PRC SRR
Subsidiary PE SO =5
Total Comprehensive Income for the AEEDEWSEE 2,956,015 1,982,733 3,204,133 2,032,413

Year




THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

HEEPXKXKE

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE (Continued)
EEWNER (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

BE-S—_—-SXA=1THLEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT ITHITR)

The Group The University
REREERE RE
Note
BitsE 2021 2020 2021 2020
Attributable to: ERER:
General and Development Reserve Fund —RERBERERES 12 16,431 (190,303) 16,431 (190,303)
Univeristy Grants Committee (‘UGC”) HESEMHEBE 12 124,801 586,851 124,801 586,851
Matching Grants Fund
Restricted Funds ERES 11 2,814,783 1,586,185 3,062,901 1,635,865

2,956,015 1,982,733 3,204,133 2,032,413

The notes set out on pages 20 to 120 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEREPNXKE

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BERRTR
AS AT 30 JUNE 2021
—E--FXA=1+H

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JA&H#8T5T517R)

The Group The University
Note RER%ERS K2
UhEEd 2021 2020 2021 2020

Non-Current Assets FiRENEE
Investments in Subsidiaries RITBABIHIRE 13 . - 2,464,747 1,611,257
Investment Properties wEY= 14 65,875 - - -
Fixed Assets EEEE 15 10,756,687 10,265,293 5,961,939 6,034,376
Intangible Assets mivEE 16 36,914 20,506 - -
Investments beta— 17.1 5,508,230 4,975,707 5,325,407 4,702,361
Employee Retirement Benefit Assets EBERMEFEE 18.1 7,141 6,187 7,141 6,187
Prepayments and Other Receivables TR B R EMEYER 20 178,369 254,861 - 53,490
Deposits with Banks RITEM 21(a) 245,188 - 245,188 -
16,798,404 15,522,554 14,004,422 12,407,671

Current Assets RENAE
Investments wE 17.2| 5,484,477|| 4,159,493(| 4,882,133|| 3,720,828
Inventories e 17,863 1,432 - -
Staff Loans BEEEMR 29 248,620 239,660 248,620 239,660
Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and ~ FEYERER ~ FAMTFIER 20 992,650 || 1,095,352 970,415 1,074,579
Other Receivables HAh YR

Contract Assets BNEE 19.1 29,572 33,726 29,532 33,726
Cash and Short-term Deposits with Banks IRERBITREAER 21(a) 17,781,010(] 16,884,294| | 15,620,472| | 14,472,957
Current Liabilities —_— 24,554,192 22,413,957 21,751,172 19,541,750
Accounts Payable and Accruals FERTERMAESTER 22 825,129 | 1,007,783|| 1,103,139 965,373
Contract Liabilities BHAEE 19.2 609,867 485,044 606,443 485,044
Lease Liabilities HEEE 23 10,416 12,217 8,836 8,318
Provision for Employee Benefits EEEH 2R 24 698,101 648,385 676,901 631,161
Loans and Borrowings (EEN 25 248,620 237,660 248,620 237,660
Deferred Income BTN 26 | 1,326,115|| 1,030,643 | 1,281,460 1,010,423
Tax Payable FE(I IR 799 - - -
3,719,047 3,421,732 3,925,399 3,337,979
Net Current Assets mEEEFE 20,835,145 18,992,225 17,825,773 16,203,771
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities BEERTEAE 37,633,549 34,514,779 31,830,195 28,611,442

Non-Current Liabilities JEREEE
Accounts Payable and Accruals FE(TRRFR R AT EL 22 7o ) i i
Contract Liabilities BHRR 19.2 1 ) i i
Loase Liabilties HEaE 23 23,637 5,414 6,083 5,187
Provision for Employee Benefits fRRIEFI (R 24 271,681 263,424 252,969 254,130
Loans and Borrowings e 25| 3,996,817 3,845,009 12,000 12,000
Doferred Income BIEKES 26 | 2,254,887 || 2,208,334 || 1,692,926 1,607,554
6,547,223 6,322,181 1,963,978 1,878,871
Deferred Capital Funds BREESERS 27 3,466,145 3,528,432 3,457,945 3,528,432
NET ASSETS BERE 27,620,181 24,664,166 26,408,272 23,204,139




THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEREPXKE

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

MERRER (48)
AS AT 30 JUNE 2021
—g--FXA=1H
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JAE¥EFTTHIR)
The Group The University
REERE RE

2021 2020 2021 2020
Restricted Funds SHES 11 23,321,234 20,467,090 22,109,325 19,007,063
UGC Funds HESES 12 4,298,947 4,197,076 4,298,947 4,197,076
TOTAL FUNDS B 27,620,181 24,664,166 26,408,272 23,204,139

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 19 October 2021

REGR-F_—Ft+ATN B ERIZEERILIBRER

S TH S

Norman N. P. Leung 758
Chairman of the Council IREZXE

W

e
//—

Anthony Neoh ZEF
Treasurer T) &

Rocky S. Tuan F3&2£g
Vice-Chancellor and President &

Salome Y. P. Lam B3
Bursar and Director of Finance Ei#& &

The notes set out on pages 20 to 120 form an integral part of these financial statements.

NERE-TEE-B-TEZIERAMBHRRC 817 -
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
EREPXKXE

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FUNDS
BEEER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021
BE—_S_-FAA=THLTFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAFE#TF7T57R)

The Group
REBEES
UGC Funds  Restricted Funds Total
BEEES ERES Funds
(Note FizE 12)  (Note Mzt 11) ~ EE4EH
Balance - 1 July 2019 —E-hFtBA—B%R 3,838,625 18,842,808 22,681,433
Transfer from the Statement of BEHEZEKZR 396,548 1,586,185 1,982,733
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer EEHEZER (38,097) 38,097 -
Balance - 30 June 2020 —EEFRA=THR 4,197,076 20,467,090 24,664,166
and 1 July 2020 —E-EFtA—-A&R
Transfer from the Statement of BEPEEERR 141,232 2,814,783 2,956,015
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer BB ER (39,361) 39,361 -
Balance - 30 June 2021 —E--FRA=1THER 4,298,947 23,321,234 27,620,181

The notes set out on pages 20 to 120 form an integral part of these financial statements.

SIERE-TEE-—B-TEZMESFMBRR 817 -



THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
EREPXKXE

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FUNDS (Continued)
BZ@ER (17)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021
BE—_S_-FAA=THLTFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAFE#TF7T57R)

The University

rE
UGC Funds  Restricted Funds Total
BESES ERES Funds
(Note FisE 12)  (Note fifsE 11) ~ EEME
Balance - 1 July 2019 —E-hFtBA—B&ER 3,838,625 17,333,101 21,171,726
Transfer from the Statement of BEHEZEKER 396,548 1,635,865 2,032,413
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer HEEZEBR (38,097) 38,097 -
Balance - 30 June 2020 —EEFAA=THR 4,197,076 19,007,063 23,204,139
and 1 July 2020 —E-EFtR—-A%%
Transfer from the Statement of LEAS LS ES 141,232 3,062,901 3,204,133
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer EERBZBR (39,361) 39,361 -
Balance - 30 June 2021 —E--FRA=1THER 4,298,947 22,109,325 26,408,272

The notes set out on pages 20 to 120 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

EEPXKE
CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

RERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

HE—B-_-FAA=THILFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JAFE#TFTTFIR)

The Group The University
Note REERE RE
HteE 2021 2020 2021 2020
Operating Activities SEEE
Surplus before Taxation FABLRIZER 2,938,050 2,046,630 3,203,191 2,034,427
Adjustments for: FAEIER -
Depreciation e 765,185 589,942 544,153 579,336
Amortisation e 3,125 17 . -
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets HEETEERE 995 2,605 942 2,605
Interest Expense on Lease Liabilities HEaENFIEZE 151 1,175 723 294 442
Interest Expense on Secured Loans BHEAEMNANEXRH 151,808 - - -
Interest and Net Investment Income Fl 2 RI%E P U (2,382,737) (350,318) (2,248,261) (395,269)
Operating Surplus before Changes in EEETETNZCERE 1,477,601 2,289,599 1,500,319 2,221,541
Working Capital
Increase in Employee Retirement Benefit EERNEFNEEZIZM (12) (172) (12) (172)
Assets
Decrease/(Increase) in Accounts Receivable, FEIERTR « TR IR A H A 180,258 115,080 (83,357) 184,000
Prepayments and Other Receivables MR ZiRI D (3EHN)
Decrease/(Increase) in Contract Assets BREEZRED/(EN) 4,154 (4,751) 4,194 (4,751)
Increase in Inventories =FEizigm (16,431) (131) - -
(Decrease)/Increase in Accounts Payable — FEfTERFARMESTERZ(RY) (174,372) (172,524) 137,766 151,714
and Accruals $&n
Increase/(Decrease) in Contract Liabilites — S#REZIEMN/(RL) 124,854 (46,096) 121,399 (46,096)
Increase/(Decrease) in Provision for B E1EF £l ZIg /() 57,973 493 44,579 (14,404)
Employee Benefits
Increase in Deferred Income IEREW #5238 00 342,025 480,800 356,409 453,814
Cash Generated from Operations SEMEERRE 1,996,050 2,662,298 2,081,297 2,945,646
Tax Paid EARE A (1,999) - - -
Net Cash Generated from Operating EERRREERREEE 1,994,051 2,662,298 2,081,297 2,945,646

Activities




THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEEPxXKE

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS (Continued)

AERER (1)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

HE—EB-_-FAA=THILFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAB#TFIT5lR)

The Group The University
Note REER RE
FitsE 2021 2020 2021 2020
Investing Activities 1REEE
(Increase)/Decrease in Time Deposits with ~ ZHREIBB=EANEE 21(a) (167,717) (593,162) 738,547 (1,916,434)
Original Maturity over Three Months FRZ(SEhn)/ R
Payment for Capital Expenditure =E N AN (1,289,127) (1,762,191)  (461,539) (577,618)
Payment for Intangible Assets EREEMR (19,533) (3,129) - -
Proceeds from Disposal of Fixed Assets HEBEEERSRIE - 60 - 60
Payment for Purchase of Investments ERRE (862,001) (521,728) (643,502) (422,021)
Payment for Investment in a Subsidiary BERMEAS - - (800,000) (1,000,000)
Proceeds from Sales of Investments HEISERENRIE 773,205 749,082 717,877 635,070
Dividend Received ERES 39,092 38,583 20,985 18,426
Interest Received BRFE 580,544 453,093 556,071 389,883
Loans Granted to Staff HEEEM (63,000) (56,070) (63,000) (56,070)
Loans Repaid by Staff BEEEM 54,040 47,250 54,040 47,250
Net Cash (Used in)/Generated from REEEF(ER)EE R (954,497) (1,648,212) 119,479 (2,881,454)
Investing Activities REFE
Financing Activities RlEEE
Decrease in Deferred Capital Funds BEEEEE A (62,287)  (22,915) (70,487) (22,915)
Bank Loans Obtained for On-lending to Staff EEFHEMEZRITER 37,700 39,100 37,700 39,100
Repayment of Secured Loans EEHIERER - (4,000) - (4,000)
Repayment of Bank Loans for On-lending (EEEETHEE BT (26,740) (1,440)  (26,740) (1,440)
to Staff =6
Capital Element of Lease Rentals Paid X AMEEZERTG (14,532)  (15,763) (9,705)  (10,431)
Interest Element of Lease Rentals Paid EARE:EaL i R S (1,175) (723) (294) (442)
Net Cash Used in Financing mE RS A AR (67,034) (5,741)  (69,526) (128)
Activities
Net Increase in Cash and Cash REMRESEWZFEM 972,520 1,008,345 2,131,250 64,064
Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents RERREFEY - FNER 21(a) 2,222,727 1,214,382 516,027 451,963
- Beginning of Year -
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year RERBESEY - FER 21(a) 3,195,247 2,222,727 2,647,277 516,027

The notes set out on pages 20 to 120 form an integral part of these financial statements.
NERE_+TEE B _+EZMEARHBERKRZ G -



THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
EREPXKXE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A FEERRMIGE

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong which includes Morningside College,
S.H. Ho College, C.W. Chu College, Wu Yee Sun
College, and Lee Woo Sing College (collectively
“the University”), the Trustees of the four separately
established constituent Colleges, namely The
Trustees of Chung Chi College, The Trustees of New
Asia College, The Trustees of United College and
The Trustees of Shaw College, and the University’s
subsidiaries stated in note 13 to these financial
statements (collectively “the Group”). The Trustees
of these constituent Colleges were incorporated
under The Chinese University of Hong Kong
Ordinance (“the Ordinance”). As these constituent
Colleges function to complement the University
in the provision of a balanced, holistic education
which also embodies different intellectual and
cultural traditions, management of the University is
of the opinion that the Trustees of these constituent
Colleges are created to accomplish academic
and related objectives, consistent with those of
the University. Pursuant to Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 10, Consolidated Financial
Statements, the consolidated financial statements
of the University include the financial results and
assets and liabilities relating to the Trustees of the
four separately established constituent Colleges.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. These financial statements also comply with
the Statement of Recommended Practice (“SORP”)
for institutions funded by the University Grants
Committee (“UGC”) in Hong Kong. Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

2.1
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2.2

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the University. Note 2.3
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group and the University for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

The Cost Allocation Guidelines for UGC funded and
non-UGC-funded activities (“CAG”), as stipulated
in the UGC Notes on Procedures and a disclosure
requirement under SORP, is reflected in segment
reporting in note 3.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except as otherwise stated in the accounting
policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about the carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

2.2
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Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the University.
None of the developments have had a material effect
on how the Group’s and the University’s result and
financial position for the current or prior periods
have been prepared or presented. The Group and
the University have not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not effective for the current
accounting period.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions, and
cash flows and any unrealised surplus arising from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised deficit resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

In the University’s Statement of Financial Position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2.11), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

2.3 BEBERED
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2.5 Fixed Assets

Items of Fixed Assets, other than Construction
In Progress and Art Collection, are stated in
the Statement of Financial Position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 2.11).

Construction In Progress represents buildings and
other fixed assets under construction, and is stated
at cost less any impairment losses (see note 2.11)
and is not depreciated. Construction In Progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of fixed
assets when completed and is ready for use.

Art Collection is stated at cost less any impairment
losses (see note 2.11). The residual value of Art
Collection is expected to be equal to or greater than
the carrying amount, therefore Art Collection is not
depreciated.

Leasehold Land granted by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“the
Government”) for use by the University is recorded
at nil value.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
assets to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Where it can be clearly demonstrated
that subsequent expenditure on an asset has
resulted in an increase in its future economic benefit,
such expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of that asset.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of fixed assets, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives or economic lives, whichever
is shorter, as follows:

Interest in Leasehold Land  Over the remaining
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2.6

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of a fixed asset are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure on the date of retirement
or disposal.

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

Intangible Assets

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on development activities is capitalised
if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient
resources and the intention to complete development.
The expenditure capitalised includes the costs
of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate
proportion of overheads and borrowing costs,
where applicable. Capitalised development costs
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses (see note 2.11). Other
development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by
the Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite)
and impairment losses (see note 2.11).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to Statment of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure on a straight-line basis
over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for
use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

Capitalised Development 5 years
Costs
Trademarks 9-10 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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2.8

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful
lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion
that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite
is reviewed annually to determine whether events
and circumstances continue to support the indefinite
useful life assessment for that asset. If they do
not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from
the date of change and in accordance with the policy
for amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives
as set out above.

Investment Properties

Investment Properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
(see note 2.5) to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held for
currently undetermined future use.

Investment Properties are stated in the Statement
of Financial Position at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2.11).
Any gain or loss arising from the disposal of an
investment property is recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. Rental
income from Investment Properties is accounted for
as described in note 2.16(vi).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
investment properties, using the straight line method
over their estimated useful lives. Useful lives of
investment properties are the same as for buildings
or interest in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases as shown in note 2.5.

Leased Assets

At inception of a contract, the Group and the
University assess whether the contract is, or
contains, alease. Acontractis, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.
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As a lessee

The Group and the University do not apply
the practical expedient of HKFRS16.15 and
account for each lease component within the
contract as a lease separately from any non-
lease components of the contracts.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
and the University recognise a right-of-use
asset and a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less and leases of low-value assets. When the
Group and the University enter into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group and
the University decide whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases
which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expenditure on a systematic basis over
the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged to
the Statements of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-
use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.
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The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there is
a change in the Group’s and the University’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or there is
a change arising from the reassessment of
whether the Group and the University will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in the Statements of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
(“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the
revised lease payments and lease term using
a revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification. The only exceptions are
rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and
met the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of
HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group
and the University have taken advantage of
the practical expedient not to assess whether
the rent concessions are lease modifications,
and recognised the change in consideration
as negative variable lease payments in the
Statements of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the rent concessions
occurred.
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In the Statements of Financial Position, the
current portion of long-term lease liabilities is
determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within
twelve months after the reporting period.

(i) As alessor

When the Group or the University acts as
a lessor, it determines at lease inception
whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a
finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership
of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this
is not the case, the lease is classified as an
operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group and the University
allocate the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance
with note 2.16(vi).

When the Group or University is an intermediate
lessor, the sub-leases are classified as a
finance lease or as an operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from
the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term
lease to which the Group or the University
applies the exemption described in note 2.8(i),
then the Group or the University classifies the
sub-lease as an operating lease.

Investments

The Group’s and the University’s policies for
investments in securities other than investments in
subsidiaries are as follows:

Investments are recognised/derecognised on
the date the Group and the University commit
to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.
Investments in equity securities are initially stated at
fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs,
except for those investments measured at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss (“FVPL”) for which transaction
costs are recognised directly in surplus or deficit.
These investments are subsequently accounted for
as follows, depending on their classification:
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(a)

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group and
the University are classified into one of the
following measurement categories:

amortised costs, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method.

fair value at FVPL if the investment does
not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income (“FVOCI”) (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the investment
(including interest) are recognised in surplus
or deficit.

Equity Investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVPL unless the equity investment is not held
for trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment, the Group and the University
make an irrevocable election to designate the
investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
other restricted funds. It is not recycled through
surplus or deficit. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised
in the surplus or deficit in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2.16(iv).
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2.10 Staff Loans and Accounts Receivable

Staff Loans and Accounts Receivable are recognised
when the Group and the University have an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only
the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due. If income has been
recognised before the Group or the University have
an unconditional right to receive a consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset (see note
2.12). Receivables are stated at amortised costs
using the effective interest method less allowance

for credit losses (see note 2.11(a)).

2.11 Credit Losses and Impairment of Assets

(@) Creditlosses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables

The Group and the University recognise a loss
allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLSs”)
on financial assets measured at amortised cost
and contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15
(see note 2.12) and lease receivables.

Financial assets measured at fair value,
including units in bond funds, equity securities
measured at FVPL and equity securities
designated at FVOCI (non-recycling) are not
subject to the ECL assessment.

- Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group and the University in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group and
the University expect to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls for fixed-rate
financial assets, accounts and other receivables
and contract assets are discounted using the
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation thereof, and
lease receivables are discounted using the
discount rate used in the measurement of lease
receivables, where the effect of discounting is
material.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group and the University
are exposed to credit risk.
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In measuring ECLs, the Group and the University
take into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost
or effort. This includes information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date; and

lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL
model applies.

Loss allowances for accounts and other
receivables and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s or
the University’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
and the University recognise a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case
the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group and the University
compare the risk of default occurring on the
financial instrument assessed at the reporting
date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group and the University consider that a default
event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group or the
University in full, without recourse by the Group
or the University to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (ii) the financial asset
is 12 months past due.
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The Group and the University consider both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group or the
University.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in
the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in surplus or deficit. The Group
and the University recognise an impairment
gain or loss for all financial instruments with
a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.
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Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
or contract asset is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group or the University determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources
of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in surplus or deficit in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

(b) Impairment of Other Assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to identify indications that Fixed Assets and
Investments in Subsidiaries in the University’s
Statement of Financial Position may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased.

Ifany such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. When an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independently of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash generating unit).
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- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure if the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of the asset or
assets in the cash-generating unit on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

- Reversal of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

Areversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure in the year in which the reversals
are recognised.

2.12 Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
and the University recognise income (see note
2.16) before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in
the contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECL
in accordance with the policy set outin note 2.11(a)
and are reclassified to receivables when the right
to the consideration has become unconditional (see
note 2.10).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the Group
and the University recognise the related income
(see note 2.16). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group and the University have
an unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group and the University
recognise the related income. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised
(see note 2.10).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented
on a net basis.
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2.13 Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.

2.14 Cash and Cash Equivalents

215

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise cash at banks
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash
Equivalents are held for meeting short-term liquidity
requirements, rather than for investment purposes.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL in
accordance with the policy set out in note 2.11(a).

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group or the
University has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.
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2.16 Income Recognition

Income is classified by the Group and the University
when it arises from the sale of goods, the provision
of services or the use by others of the Group’s and
the University’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s and the University’s business.

Income is recognised when the control over a prod-
uct or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group or
the University is expected to be entitled, excluding
those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Further details of the Group’s and the University’s
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Government Subventions

Recurrent grants for general purposes are
recognised as income when the grants have
been received or are receivable from the
University Grants Committee (“UGC”). Any
such grants, which are received in excess of
the related expenses incurred are transferred
to the General and Development Reserve
Fund in the reporting period in accordance
with prevailing UGC guidelines.

Matching grants are recognised as income
when the grants have been received or are
receivable from the UGC.

Recurrent grants for specific purposes and
earmarked grants other than matching grants
spent on capital expenditure are initially
recorded in Deferred Capital Funds and are
recognised as income over the useful lives of
the related assets when the assets are putinto
use, to the extent of the related depreciation
expenses incurred for that period.

Earmarked grants other than matching grants
are recognised as income to the extent of
the related expenditure incurred during the
reporting period.
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(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

Government assistance in the form of interest-
free loans for the first five years spent on
capital expenditure of the teaching hospital is
initially recorded as liabilities and is recognised
as income over the useful lives of the related
assets when the assets are putinto use, to the
extent of the related depreciation expenses
incurred for that period.

Tuition, programme and other fees

Tuition, programme and other fees are
recognised on an accrual basis and unearned
fees are treated as receipts in advance.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Dividend

Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

Dividend income from listed securities is
recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Donations and benefactions

Donations and benefactions in cash and cash
equivalents or other investment instruments
for general purpose are recognised as income
at fair values when it is probable that they will
be received, which is generally upon receipt of
cash. Donations and Benefactions for specific
purposes designated by the donors are initially
recognised as deferred income when received,
and then as income to the extent of the related
expenditure incurred during the year.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in
equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

(iii)

(iv)
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(vii) Other service income

Other service income is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure when the related service is
rendered.

2.17 Books and Periodicals

Library books and periodicals are written off to
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure in the year in which the expenditure
is incurred.

2.18 Employee Benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Salaries, paid annual leave, housing allowances
and the cost to the Group or the University of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are
rendered by the employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

Contract-end gratuity is payable on completion
of a contract appointment with an employee
who has been in continuous employment of
not less than two years. The gratuity, together
with the total amount of the University’s
contributions to a particular retirement scheme,
will add up to 10% or 15% of the appointee’s
basic salary drawn during the contract period.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
schemes, including Mandatory Provident
Funds (“MPF”) as required under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure as incurred.

The net obligation in respect of a defined benefit
retirement scheme is calculated separately by
estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their
services in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine the present
value and the fair value of any scheme assets
is deducted. The calculation is performed by
a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. When the calculation results
in a benefit to the Group or the University,
the recognised asset is limited to the present
value of economic benefits available in the
form of any future refunds from the scheme
or reductions in future contributions to the
scheme.

(vii)
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Service cost and net interest expenses/
(income) on the net defined benefit liability/
(asset) are recognised in the line item of staff
cost and benefits under Management and
General in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure. Current service cost
is measured as the increase in the present
value of the defined benefit obligation resulting
from employee service in the current period.
When the benefits of a scheme are changed
or when a scheme is curtailed, the portion of
the changed benefit related to past service by
employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment,
is recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure at
the earlier of when the scheme amendment
or curtailment occurs and when related
restructuring costs or termination benefits are
recognised. Net interest expenses/(income)
for the period is determined by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the year
to the net defined benefit liability/(asset).
The discount rate is the yield at the end of
the reporting period on high quality corporate
bonds that have maturity dates approximating
the terms of the Group’s or the University’s
obligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined
benefit retirement schemes are recognised
in other comprehensive income and
reflected immediately in restricted funds.
Remeasurements comprise actuarial gains
and losses, the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability/(asset)) and
any change in the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability/(asset)).

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group or the University can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

2.19 Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the foreign exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure.
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Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

2.20 Related Parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(ii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vii)A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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2.21 Taxation

The University is exempted from payment of Hong
Kong Profits Tax by virtue of Section 88 of the Inland
Revenue Ordinance.

Income tax for the year comprises current tax of the
University’s subsidiaries which is the expected tax
payable on taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.
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3. SEGMENT REPORTING FOR THE GROUP’S AND THE UNIVERSITY’S INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
ABRERKBWA RS 3 EHE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT ITTHIR)
The Group
KRB
UGC-Funded Non-UGC-Funded Activities Inter- 2021
Activities IR EDERNEEN Segment Total
Self-Financed Research  Teaching Tr?n_saC'fDn
Elimination

Programmes  Activities ~ Hospital Activities
BEDEH nELERE MFTEE REER HitEs 2EEZR Hag

iEEn SiRH
Revenue A
Government Subventions IRTEEN 5,486,162 (173) 49,304 18422 10,729 - 5,564,444
Tuition, Programme and BE . FER 1,082,257 1,217,498 - - - (400) 2,299,355
Other Fees HithE
Interest and Net Investment || S X3%E&F 672,661 127,747 15792 22,458 1,543,138 941 2,382,737
Income s
Donations and Benefactions  f8BBRIRR 197,120 7,039 271484 635017 150,912 (1,107) 1,260,465
Angillary Services Income EEENARFSIIA 37,062 18 - 44624 176,203 (1,614) 256,293
Other Income A 68,959 66,568 151,336 36,568 772,682 (2,862) 1,093,251
7,544,221 1418697 487,916 757,089 2,653,664 (5,042)12,856,545
Expenditure 2]
Learning and Research B R
Instruction and Research HEARHATE 4,835,304 1,045,017 402,820 - 175,007 (2,042) 6,456,106
Library B 281,711 - - - 1,928 - 283,639
Central Computing Facilites — choRER&ERiiE 157,413 - - - 37,607 - 195,020
Other Academic Services B2 ERARFS 151,772 17,232 - 395596 13,190  (75) 577,715
Institutional Support AEREHENARTE
Managementand General ~ EIEN—AREIE 320,554 (94) - 205,862 76,804 (2,074) 601,052
Premises and Related EFEREEEY 841733 - - 224880 74,467 - 1,141,080
Expenses
Student and General BER—BBE 396,900 - - - 229772 (454) 626,218
Education Services =
Other Activities VLSS 13,704 - - - 24358 (397) 37,665
Inter-segment Expenditure  SERRIZH/URE) 62,248 (228,403) 23,978 - 142,177 - -
/(Recovery)

7,061,339 833,752 426,798 826,338 775,310 (5,042) 9,918,495

Surplus/(Deficit) before Tax  FRBEIREHESHR) 480880 584945 61,118 (69,249) 1,878,354 - 2,938,050
Income Tax Fhi% - - - - 2,798 - 2,798
Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year AFEREHER) 430880 584945 61,118 (69,249) 1,875,556 - 2,935,252




3. SEGMENT REPORTING FOR THE GROUP’S AND THE UNIVERSITY’S INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

(Continued)

ABRERABRARZHZEHES (48)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TTHIR)
The Group
RERELRS
UGC-Funded Non-UGC-Funded Activities Inter- 2020
Activities IR EDERNEEN Segment Total
Self-Financed Research  Teaching r Tr?n?aCt,ion
Programmes ~ Activities ~ Hospital Activities Elimination
RESEE EEERE WNE NEER HinEs AR ]
A il
Revenue WA
Govemment Subventions BUATEEN 5,952,543 885 49,756 - 10,165 - 6,013,349
Tuition, Programme and B8 REN 1,090,792 1,269,972 - - 7 (35) 2,360,736
Other Fees RS
Interest and Net Investment FERITEF 231,152 22,512 11,923 31,018 53,544 169 350,318
Income Yia
Donations and Benefactions  1BEERIEM 775,723 6,863 280,752 140,661 380,186 (1,131) 1,583,054
Ancillary Services Income EHENARFSUIA 34,437 789 - - 241,780 (1,211) 275,795
Other Income EAISA 91,474 53,731 131,916 14,612 280,991 (1,618) 571,106
8,176,121 1,354,752 474,347 186,291 966,673 (3,826)11,154,358
Expenditure k-2
Learning and Research Bl R R
Instruction and Research BELGAE 4,801,878 1,117,845 322,268 - 89435 (194) 6,331,232
Library EEEE 260,681 - - - 1,690 - 262,371
Central Computing Facilties ~ SRR 174,805 - - - 28,397 - 203,202
Other Academic Services H S EERTE 160,196 18,148 - 92301 17,280  (109) 287,816
Institutional Support A BTHENARTE
Management and General EEN—REIE 336,383 (85) - 58,734 6,465 (703) 400,794
Premises and Related 1BF AR 843,190 - - - 70,584 1,021 914,795
Expenses
Student and General BEN—RHE 441,157 - - - 238,383 (3,824) 675,716
Education Services 55
Other Activities HAhEEH 14,486 - - - 17,333 (17) 31,802
Inter-segment Expenditure 43 8BRS H/(UKIE]) 48,591 (233,689) 31,226 - 153,872 - -
/(Recovery)
7,081,367 902,219 353,494 151,035 623,439 (3,826) 9,107,728
Surplus for the year REFERR 1,094,754 452,533 120,853 35,256 343,234 -

2,046,630




3. SEGMENT REPORTING FOR THE GROUP’S AND THE UNIVERSITY’S INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
(Continued)

ABRERAXBWARZHAEES (48)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ABEETFITHIR)
The University
K&
UGC-Funded Non-UGC-Funded Activities 2021
Activities ERESEED Total
Self-Financed Research  Teaching Other
Programmes Activites ~ Hospital ~ Activities
RESER HEwERE MIEEE B8R HitUEE iagE
EE
Revenue KA
Government Subventions BUTER 5,486,162 (173) 49,304 - 485 5,535,778
Tuition, Programme and BE - FENR 1,082,257 1,215,230 - - - 2,297,487
Other Fees Hth &
Interest and Net Investment FIERIZEF 672,661 127,747 15,792 16,017 1,416,044 2,248,261
Income Yas
Donations and Benefactions  1BIGNIEH 197,120 849 271,484 634,926 55,920 1,160,299
Ancillary Services Income  EEBABRFEUIA 37,062 18 - - 205,793 242,873
Other Income Hubu A 68,959 66,484 151,336 - 364,620 651,399
7,544,221 1,410,155 487,916 650,943 2,042,86212,136,097
Expenditure 2.
Learning and Research Bl K ERT
Instruction and Research HEB NS 4,835,304 1,045,017 402,820 - 167,459 6,450,600
Library BIEEE 281,711 - - - 1,928 283,639
Central Computing Facilies ~HRER 157,413 - - - 37,607 195,020
Other Academic Services HAth B RS 151,772 2,191 - - 13,195 167,158
Institutional Support K EBUHBhARTE
Management and General ~ BEX&—#ZEE 320,554 (94) - - 7,432 327,892
Premises and Related BFEEEHEZE 841,733 - - - 56,599 898,332
Expenses
Student and General BEL—MHE 396,900 - - - 186,374 583,274
Education Services ==t
Other Activities HthE#5 13,704 - - - 13,287 26,991
Inter-segment Expenditure ~ 3EBREIZH/(YE]) 62,248 (228,403) 23,978 - 142177 -
/(Recovery)
7,061,339 818,711 426,798 - 626,058 8,932,906
Surplus for the year AEERR 482,882 591,444 61,118 650,943 1,416,804 3,203,191




3. SEGMENT REPORTING FOR THE GROUP’S AND THE UNIVERSITY’S INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
(Continued)
KEBERAXBWARZ L2 ERHE (18)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AEEETFITHIR)
The University
KE
UGC-Funded Non-UGC-Funded Activities 2020
Activities R EESEETEN Total
Self-Financed Research  Teaching Other
Programmes Activites ~ Hospital ~ Activities
REZEE BELERE WEEE HEBRE 0 HUEE b
)
Revenue KA
Government Subventions BT ERN 5,952,543 885 49,756 - 10,165 6,013,349
Tuition, Programme and BE  FEN& 1,090,792 1,267,594 - - - 2,358,386
Other Fees HAthyg &
Interest and Net Investment  FI 2 XIREFE 231,152 22,512 11,923 22,713 106,969 395,269
Income Yas
Donations and Benefactions 188 &IBFR 775,723 2,083 280,752 140,656 108,578 1,307,792
Ancillary Services Income  EEBIRRFSUIA 34,437 789 - - 235,022 270,248
Other Income EL{BUTA 91,474 53,676 131,916 - 279,143 556,209
8,176,121 1,347,539 474,347 163,369 739,87710,901,253
Expenditure 54
Learning and Research Bt RiRFR
Instruction and Research EB K A SE 4,801,878 1,117,845 322,268 - 87,606 6,329,597
Library EEE 260,681 - - - 1,690 262,371
Central Computing Facilites ~®REEHEE 174,805 - - - 28,397 203,202
Other Academic Services — HAHBARES 160,196 4,340 - - 16,808 181,344
Institutional Support KBRS
Management and General ~EEX—#ZEE 336,383 (85) - - 6,161 342,459
Premises and Related BFLBERE 843,190 - - - 53,726 896,916
Expenses
Student and General BEN—MRHBE 441,157 - - - 181,256 622,413
Education Services =
Other Activities HihEE#5 14,486 - - - 14,038 28,524
Inter-segment Expenditure 2883z H/(WE) 48,591 (233,689) 31,226 - 133,872 -
/(Recovery)

7,081,367 888,411 353,494 - 543,554 8,866,826

Surplus for the year AEERER 1,094,754 459,128 120,853 163,369 196,323 2,034,427




3. SEGMENT REPORTING FOR THE GROUP’S AND THE UNIVERSITY’S INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
(Continued)
ABRERABYA R 28RS (8)

Note: (1) Inter-segment transactions mainly included overhead recovered from self-financed programmes,

Pt sE:

externally-funded activities and costs recovered for the services provided among UGC-funded and
non-UGC-funded activities.

(2) These disclosures regarding segment reporting are included as a requirement of the SORP for UGC-

funded Institutions. The reported segments are defined by source of funding. The disclosures are
not designed to fully comply with the requirements of HKFRS 8, Operating Segments. The SORP
is intended to complement HKFRSs, covering areas which are unique to UGC-funded institutions.

(3) The University determines the basis of allocation of costs between UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded

activities with reference to the UGC Notes on Procedures and the CAGs which is effective from 1
July 2018.

(4) The CAGs define principles and approaches of cost allocation, including the definition of cost pools

(1)
(2)

(3)

(4)

and cost drivers for UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities on a full cost recovery basis.

DEEZRZEEEEELERE - I EDNER AR ESEN MR E S ERNEB i At RUARTEUR
ERREERER -

BRAZMEE KB RAESENRREZERNNER - BEDMHESKEDE - HENENLETZ
DTRENE (BFEMBREEA) Hefk "KEDE, WER - ZREANSERRETEMHZREER -
HEHNEGEMRRIETRM -
ABRBHESEFEENR =TS —N\FLtA—HERTHRAZEES | MRERESEMNIFEREDE
ENEENMIR A D ECERE -

RADEIESIRET RAZENRAGE - BEUAERRORASERNRS D ELAESEEMIEN
EREMENHTBTENES

Cost allocation principles for UGC-funded and non-UGC funded activities
The principles for cost allocation and overhead recovery of the University are:

No cross subsidisation between UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities;

All direct costs which can be separately attributable to specific activities should be fully taken up and
borne by the activities;

All indirect costs, such as centrally provided facilities, administrative and support services, which
cannot be separately identified to specific activities, are allocated to segments as overhead recovery
according to the University’s internal policy.

HEDH RN ESEEEARAE SRR
ARERAAEHEEERWENRAIT

HESEDFERESEREEN IR B R

FREEERARBERYNERBRZFENZHRIE

FRETREDFBBERTEENEEER - WhRERE - (TEREEIRE - AIERRASBASBERIRAS
DER



4. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS HFF&EER)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MAFE#EFITHIR)

The Group The University
REEE RE
2021 2020 2021 2020

4,269,328 |( 4,243,317
181,538 189,300

4,269,328(| 4,243,317
181,538 189,300

Subventions from UGC HESE

Block Grants EREWeEE

Supplementary Grants IBHEHENE

Earmarked Grants IEEREWHIE
Research Grants RS HBnE
Housing Benefits EEEH
Matching Grants BofifiBnE
Research Matching Grants TR E BN E
Area of Excellence SHEREE
Knowledge Transfer Activities HMEEEEE
Others Hiih

Rates and Government Rent Refund RiEEM A B AT

Capital Grants and Alterations, Additions, EEHBENEEEPE -

Repairs and Improvements (“AA&I”) NE ~ #EXE
Block Allocation TrEEREIR

4,450,866 4,432,617

206,037 216,666
14,230 16,032

- 600,000

16,312 -
28,539 18,775
12,730 10,936
42,009 38,226

70,385 73,764

232,472 203,420

4,450,866 4,432,617

206,037 216,666
14,230 16,032
- 600,000

16,312 -
28,539 18,775
12,730 10,936
42,009 38,226

70,385 73,764

232,472 203,420

Grants from Government Agencies TR

5,073,580 5,610,436

490,864 402,913

5,073,580 5,610,436

462,198 402,913

5,564,444 6,013,349

5,535,778 6,013,349




4.1 Matching Grants BC¥lfENE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(BT TIIR)

Matching Donations

Matching Donations

Grants Grants
B wiBnE B fosifiiBnE B
The Group The University
REERE RE
2021 2021
Balance - Beginning of Year FUEEER 2,000,609 2,527,038 2,000,609 2,207,627
Income (Note) YA (BEE)
Grants/Donation HBNE/BM - - - (13,433)
Interest and Net Investment Income ~ FISA&IZEFWE | 181,717 340,715 181,717 326,095
181,717 340,715 181,717 312,662
Expenditure T
Teaching and Research BEBNAR 29,224 67,301 29,224 67,330
Student Exchange Activities BEZEEN 674 297 674 297
Student Development BERE 16,207 17,024 16,207 5,601
Scholarships REE 8,154 13,138 8,154 11,173
Bursaries BhEE (489) 3,179 (489 1,786
Capital Projects EEIEH - 92,357 - 44,029
53,770 193,296 53,770 130,216
Transfer (to)/from Capital Fund/ B(E)HEEES (3,146) 31,787 (3,146) 31,780
Deferred Capital Fund ETEEES
Balance - End of Year AR AERR 2125410 2,706,244 2,125410 2,421,853
The Group The University
KRR RE
2020 2020
Balance - Beginning of Year FHEEER 1,413,758 1,549,787 1,413,758 1,466,050
Income (Note) YA (BEE)
Grants/Donation fHBNE/IBR 600,000| (1,140,000 600,000 859,265
Interest and Net Investment Income ~ FIE A IRE Bz 42,802 11,951 42,802 15,862
642,802 1,151,951 642,802 875,127
Expenditure T
Teaching and Research BERMR 20,103 99,833 20,103 99,724
Student Exchange Activities BERREE 2,668 4,617 2,668 4,617
Student Development BAEE 23,357 16,875 23,357 5,698
Scholarships BEE 7,515 20,678 7,515 15,877
Bursaries BhEsg 447 2,730 447 1,886
Capital Projects HEEIEE - 56,834 - 32,606
54,090 201,567 54,090 160,408
Transfer (to)/from Capital Fund/ B(E)eEEES/ (1,861) 26,867 (1,861) 26,858
Deferred Capital Fund EEEEES
Balance - End of Year TR 2,000,609 2,207,627

2,000,609

2,527,038




Note: (1) For Matching Grant Schemes, private donations secured for purposes including construction of campus
buildings and scholarships but excluding self-financed activities were matched. Grants were awarded on a
dollar-for-dollar matching basis (i.e. a $1 to $1 matching ratio) up to $60 million and on a $1 for $2 matching
basis (i.e. $1 Government Grant for every $2 private donations secured) for amounts beyond $60 million
and limited to an overall total of $600 million for each institute.

(2) The University has duly complied with the terms and conditions for matching and the donations and the
matching grants have been used in accordance with the UGC’s Operating Guide for the Matching Grant
Schemes for the financial year 2020-21.

MizE: (1) ECHIMEBIERIBIRYFMERNIANENEEAREERESNRES - ETEFEAREEZBNER - HhEARE
BNTEERFELS (B —TH—THLER)E - ARSI — T mThItbR(BISMTih AR F 28—
TTHATHBIE)E - MBWIBRSUF/BTHEBIEHET -

(2) REB-F - —FEAZBEERANESERH BB TEIREEmPEcHHBEMEERANFBRREHHEEE
HIfERIRIR R AER -

4.2 Matching Grants for Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students

SLB24AiiEREcEH B HHE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (JAZB#ETFITHIR)

The Group and the University

REERBRAE
Matching Donation Matching Donation
Grants Grants
[EgE ) ER BR [EgE ) ER BM
2021 2020
Balance - Beginning of Year #4583 3,844 - 3,734 -
Income WA
Grants refunded HE =] (3,844) - - -
- - 3,734 5
Expenditure ZH
Programme Costs JHER®
Academic Related Programs ~ ZilitHRIIEE - - (39) -
Career Related Programs MEMRIER - - 38 -
Cultural Related Programs X{cHERAIER - - (109) -
- - (110) .
Balance - End of Year (Note 1) F#2458% (Kisx1) - - 3,844 -

Note: (1) The balance was included in the deferred income (note 26).
(2) The University had duly complied with the terms and conditions for the matching and use of the
matching grants under the Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students as set
out in the Operating Guide for the financial year 2019-20.
MizE: (1) SEREERETEERTEWEA (HiEE26) -
(2) REFJB-N/"BFEABENS FBEAESERT ST ER(EfER A BN S A ACE K (& IR ARAY -



4.3 Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary Students (“SSE”)
S LBEIRINRREEE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT ITTHIR)
The Group and the University

REEE N AE
The University excluding CUSCS* CUSCS*
AREBTEIEEREZER HRE(ZER
2021 2020 2021 2020
Balance - Beginning of Year TR 4,068 7,414 1,226 855
Income A
Grants received eE 369 376 - 416
Interest and Net Investment Income Fll 8 &% EF IR 83 132 79 20
452 508 79 436
Expenditure ZiH
Student Exchange Scholarships BARhiREE 85 3,854 - 65
85 3,854 - 65
Balance - End of Year (Note 1) SEAREERR (MiEE1) 4,435 4,068 1,305 1,226

* CUSCS represents School of Continuing and Professional Studies.
Note: (1) The balance is included in the deferred income (note 26).
(2) The University has duly complied with the terms and conditions for the use of funding under SSE as
set out in the Operating Guide for the financial year 2020-21.
MizE: (1) SRECEEEETREA (FiFE26)
(2) REBZBIT—FEABENE L2ERIINRRE M EIR IR RIEERIRT R ARA

4.4 Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions for Post-secondary Students (“SSEBR”)
EL84 TR, ERREHE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AEEETFITHIR)
The Group and the University

REBERENAE
The University excluding CUSCS* Cuscs*
RETTEEEEESEMR EREIEER
2021 2020 2021 2020
Balance - Beginning of Year FHEER 8 1,336 - 145
Income A
Grants refunded REIEE) - (495) - (146)
Interest and Net Investment Income I8 &% EBULESE ) 9 - 1
@ (486) - (145)
Expenditure ZiH
Student Exchange Scholarships BERRIRES 4 842 - -
842 - -
Balance - End of Year (Note 1) SEERELER (MisE1) - 8 - -

* CUSCS represents School of Continuing and Professional Studies.
Note: (1) The balance was included in the deferred income (note 26).
(2) The University has duly complied with the terms and conditions for the use of funding under SSEBR
as set out in the Operating Guide for the financial year 2020-21.
MizE: (1) #ABERCEREERENEA (FiEE26) -
(2) REBIS/T—FEABERE FBERE T8, WEIREMTEIRIEIERE P IRISERIRTRARA -



4.5

Scheme for Means-tested Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions for Post-secondary Students
(“Means-tested SSEBR”)
B84 "%k, WEXREHHE (BABRREESESE)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A EEETFTHIR)
The Group and the University

4.6

REBEENAKE
The University excluding CUSCS* CUSCS*
RELTEEEEZER EREIZER
2021 2020 2021 2020
Balance - Beginning of Year FMLER 600 - 723 -
Income A
Grants received (=2 e=1:0] 170 1,153 - 722
Interest and Net Investment Income Fll 8 &i%& i FUEs 17 8 32 10
187 1,161 32 732
Expenditure ZH
Student Exchange Scholarships BARRigEE 195 561 - 9
195 561 - 9
Balance - End of Year (Note 1) SRR (MisE1) 592 600 755 723

* CUSCS represents School of Continuing and Professional Studies.
Note: (1) The balance is included in the deferred income (note 26).
(2) The University has duly complied with the terms and conditions for the use of funding under Means-
tested SSEBR as set out in the Operating Guide for the financial year 2020-21.
MizE: (1) BRCEFEEETNEA (HIEE26)
(2) REBTST—FEABEREFEYE "%, MERRENE (RABNEEEE) RIEEED
TRIE(E AR R 4R -

Scheme for Non-means-tested Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (“Non-means-
tested MES”)
S FEEAEREE (RARKREEESD)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UEEETFTTHIT)
The Group and the University

REBEENAE
The University excluding CUSCS* Ccuscs*
RETSEEHREEZSMR EREEZER
2021 2020 2021 2020
Balance - Beginning of Year TS 590 - 135 -
Income A
Grants received [=e=1:n 48 1,239 7 150
Interest and Net Investment Income |8 A% EFINEE 13 12 6 2
61 1,251 13 152
Expenditure ZiH
Student Exchange Scholarships BAERRRESE 4 661 - 17
4 661 - 17
Balance - End of Year (Note 1) SR EEER (BIEE1) 647 590 148 135

* CUSCS represents School of Continuing and Professional Studies.
Note: (1) The balance is included in the deferred income (note 26).
(2) The University has duly complied with the terms and conditions for the use of funding under Non-
means-tested MES as set out in the Operating Guide for the financial year 2020-21.
MizE: (1) FERCEREEREWRERA (MiEE26) -
(2) REB2E T —SEAEENE LEE AR E(R AR NEESR D) RIFERD IR RIRRAADE -

d



4.7 Scheme for Non-means-tested Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions for Post-secondary
Students (“Non-means-tested SSEBR”)
SLE4E "%k, WEXRENHE (RABRREEESE)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT ITTHIR)
The Group and the University

REBEENKE
The University excluding CUSCS* CUSCS*
RETOEEEEZER HREEZEmR
2021 2020 2021 2020
Balance - Beginning of Year FHaEe 958 - 397 -
Income A
Grants received BWER 370 1,553 - 392
Interest and Net Investment Income #ll 8 R&i%& i FUs 21 16 18 5
391 1,569 18 397
Expenditure TH
Student Exchange Scholarships BAZ RS 130 611 - -
130 611 - -
Balance - End of Year (Note 1) SFLREERR (MiEE1) 1,219 958 415 397

* CUSCS represents School of Continuing and Professional Studies.
Note: (1) The balance is included in the deferred income (note 26).
(2) The University has duly complied with the terms and conditions for the use of funding under Non-
means-tested SSEBR as set out in the Operating Guide for the financial year 2020-21.
MizE: (1) AEERRESREERENEA (izE2e) -
(2) REBIS T —FEABERELELE T —F—K, HEXRENE (RABREESE) BIEERTD
TRIE{E R AR A -



4.8 Research Matching Grants  RREH#HEIE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAE#EFITHIR)

Research Matching Matched Donations/
Grants Research Grants/
Research Contracts
fRSEAC e BT oSN/ RSE B/
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ"\
The Group and the University
KREAERR T KER
2021 2020 2021 2020
Balance - Beginning of Year FHEEER 130,754 - 174,167 -
Income (Note) YA (BEE)
Donations/Research Grants/ SWIBFUIASEREEN | 130,446 | | 129,677 260,893 || 209,355
Research Contracts Received EIAEER
Interest and Net Investment Income Fll 2 K& & iFUES 3,341 1,077 1,776 1,483
133,787 130,754 262,669 210,838
Expenditure T
Research Projects ARIER 15,519 - 110,315 33,500
Research Equipment Rk i - - 54 5
Setting Up of Research Facilites ~ #23rf5E% 429 - - -
Research Activities for Students EBAITEE 364 - 1,266 23
16,312 - 111,635 33,528
Transfer to Deferred Capital Fund/ BEELEEEESE/ (1,984) - (29,458) (3,143)
Capital Fund BEEESE
Balance - End of Year FHEERR 246,245 130,754 295,743 174,167

Note: (1) The balance of Research Matching Grants is included in deferred income (note 26).

(2) The Research Matching Grants are grants awarded by UGC to institutions which succeeded in securing
donations/research grants/research contracts from non-government/non-public sectors designated
solely for research-related expenditure/purpose.

(3) The activities under Self-financing Operations are not applicable to CUHK as no such donations/
research grants/research contracts have been applied for the Research Matching Grant Scheme.

(4) The University has duly complied with the terms and conditions for matching and the donations/research
grants/research contracts and the Research Matching Grants have been used in accordance with the
UGC'’s Operation Guide for Research Matching Grant Scheme for the financial year 2020-21.

Mtk (1) AREHHEEIESERC EETETRBA(HIEE26) o
(2) HEEHHPERHREGHABUIEB A ELLTPIESNIRA R MBI/ R &4 R

fRBLAECE RS -
(3) BEXRBEHLFBAREEINAER  AABKRBHEEANER/MAEHB/ MR SHBRRTERH
fHEhERTEl -

(4) REBTE ——FEABCENRESH RN BIREEE D AR MBI A HRA
TR/ BN AR 5 5 4 K it ST EC Y Y E B (& PSR TR AL AR -



TUITION, PROGRAMME AND OTHER FEES

BE - RELHMKE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (JAZB#ETFITHIR)
The Group The University
REREES KE
2021 2020 2021 2020
UGC-Funded Programmes HEFEHRE
Tuition Fees BE 1,062,189 1,072,744 1,062,189 1,072,744
Programme and Other Fees RREAEMINE 19,537 17,205 19,537 17,205
Non-UGC-Funded Programmes EHESERE
Tuition Fees BE5 1,206,933 1,257,982 1,205,073 1,255,639
Programme and Other Fees RN EMMINE 10,696 12,805 10,688 12,798
2,299,355 2,360,736 2,297,487 2,358,386
INTEREST AND NET INVESTMENT INCOME FE R IR EF NS
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (JAZ#ETFITHITR)
The Group The University
RESEERE KE
2021 2020 2021 2020
Interest Income from Listed Securities LRSI B 35,922 34,441 32,116 29,614
Interest Income from Unlisted Securities FE_LMHzEEF 2 UL 35,001 35,386 34,457 35,044
Interest Income from Time Deposits EHTERFIE 270,961 348,408 252,765 321,366
Net Realised and Unrealised HithiZ5 B8RSR 1,846,331 (85,678) 1,759,987 7,917
Gain/(Loss) on Other Securities EIR B E/(B518)
Net Realised and Unrealised Exchange E&IRMKEIRZINE 128,904 (46,916) 126,892 (44,631)
Gain/(Loss) from Time Deposits SIRE B/ (E51E)
Dividends from Listed and LTHRIELTE 62,333 59,986 43,765 41,268
Unlisted Securities P B Ui
Other Investment Income/(Loss) HiE s/ (B518) 3,285 4,691 (1,721) 4,691
2,382,737 350,318 2,248,261 395,269




7. DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS LY E PN

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT ITHIR)

The Group The University
REBER KRB

2021 2020 2021 2020

Capital Projects HEEIHE 48,786 166,120 80 2,197
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries REE RENPEE 41,933 95,526 35,471 63,041
Research Activities SR 326,641 390,066 326,641 390,066
College Development ERERE 21,657 136,223 1,195 57,374
Development of Teaching Hospital BRAEER 634,990 140,661 634,926 140,656
General Academic Use —RRBEBRE 161,728 654,458 161,986 654,458
Others Hth 24,730 - - -
1,260,465 1,583,054 1,160,299 1,307,792

Note: Total donations of $780.4 million were received from the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust for the year

(2020: $547.2 million).

Mzt AEEREEESSRECRESREIMEALENTEON+ER (CF=FF ARMETLtE=+ER) °



ANCILLARY SERVICES INCOME EHBNBRIEUIA
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (JAB#ETFITHIR)

The Group The University
REAEEES KE

2021 2020 2021 2020

Resident Halls BYES 79,420 106,407 79,028 106,619
Rental Income HEWA 96,270 81,572 69,193 75,793
Catering and Hospitality Services IER N EEERRTE 3,208 2,919 3,208 2,919
University Press KREBH ARt 9,306 8,733 9,306 8,733
Rental Contribution from Staff B SFHEHR 9,144 9,489 9,144 9,489
Retail Store Sales TEEHHHEE 582 915 591 935
Others Hith 58,363 65,760 72,403 65,760

256,293 275,795 242,873 270,248

OTHER INCOME Hhgr A

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT THI7R)

The Group The University

KRERELRE KREE
2021 2020 2021 2020
Service Income BRFSUTA 404,810 215,225 294,824 215,961
Contract Research BEEas 179,969 170,509 179,969 170,509
Miscellaneous Hith 508,472 185,372 176,606 169,739

1,093,251 571,106 651,399 556,209




10.

EXPENDITURE 3Zih
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (JAFBE#ETFITHIR)

The Group
PAN=E=4:
Staff Cost Operating Depreciation 2021
and Benefits Expenses and Total
B T EriM Amortisation
RaFl KERST  ITENEN 4mgE
Learning and Research BBl R i 3%
Instruction and Research BN 4,545,150 1,689,441 221,515 6,456,106
Library EES 112,984 165,099 5556 283,639
Central Computing Facilities th R ENSEL HE 111,732 62,168 21,120 195,020
Other Academic Services Hth 2 BB AR 327,414 236,054 14,247 577,715
5,097,280 2,152,762 262,438 7,512,480
Institutional Support (Note 10.1) AXEEHBIARFS(HIEE10.1)
Management and General EEN—REIE 383,012 178,011 40,029 601,052
Premises and Related Expenses  #EFNE#<EH 224,165 464,798 452117 1,141,080
Student and General Education BN —RBESE 318,264 294,381 13,573 626,218
Services
Other Activities HIhEFE 20,319 17,193 153 37,665

945,760 954,383 505,872 2,406,015

Total Expenditure - 2021 B -FR%H 6,043,040 3,107,145 768,310 9,918,495

Staff Cost  Operating Depreciation 2020
and Benefits Expenses and Total
BT &M Amortisation
KeAEF RERZ  ITEREH s
Learning and Research Bili &Rz
Instruction and Research BENRE 4,502,871 1,587,951 240,410 6,331,232
Library EES:] 114,378 140,196 7,797 262,371
Central Computing Facilities hREFEER 113,097 63,406 26,699 203,202
Other Academic Services HAh S EBARTS 231,261 45,934 10,621 287,816
4,961,607 1,837,487 285,527 7,084,621
Institutional Support (Note 10.1) AEHBNARFE(HIzE10.1)
Management and General BEER—MEIE 310,773 67,182 22,839 400,794
Premises and Related Expenses  #EFMEHZE 224,774 427,028 262,993 914,795
Student and General Education BN —RBEEE 326,419 331,164 18,133 675,716
Services
Other Activities H{thEE55 19,765 11,570 467 31,802
881,731 836,944 304,432 2,023,107
Total Expenditure - 2020 —EBFEaRH 5,843,338 2,674,431 589,959 9,107,728




10. EXPENDITURE i

(Continued £8)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT THI7R)
The University
RE
Staff Cost Operating Depreciation 2021
and Benefits Expenses Total
ETEEM
KAER REmz e k]
Learning and Research Bili R HF
Instruction and Research HE ST 4,535,660 1,702,425 212,515 6,450,600
Library EES: 112,984 165,099 5,556 283,639
Central Computing Facilities th RE AR 111,732 62,168 21,120 195,020
Other Academic Services HAh AR FS 151,016 15,236 906 167,158
4,911,392 1,944,928 240,097 7,096,417
Institutional Support (Note 10.1)  XZBHBIARF5(FiEE10.1)
Management and General EER—MEIE 260,225 47,321 20,346 327,892
Premises and Related Expenses BFRBEE%H 223,618 404,569 270,145 898,332
Student and General Education BYEN—RBEERS 298,356 271,491 13,427 583,274
Services
Other Activities HAh =S 19,550 7,303 138 26,991
801,749 730,684 304,056 1,836,489
Total Expenditure - 2021 —E- ST 5,713,141 2,675,612 544,153 8,932,906
Staff Cost Operating Depreciation 2020
and Benefits Expenses Total
E T HEH
AAEF mEmX e e
Learning and Research Bt R iRF
Instruction and Research HEBLAR 4,502,811 1,586,384 240,402 6,329,597
Library EES: 114,378 140,196 7,797 262,371
Central Computing Facilities th RERSEL i 113,097 63,406 26,699 203,202
Other Academic Services H At EBRRTS 159,313 18,914 3,117 181,344
4,889,599 1,808,900 278,015 6,976,514
Institutional Support (Note 10.1)  KEBEBNARF5(FiEE10.1)
Management and General EBR—REE 256,447 63,466 22,546 342,459
Premises and Related Expenses BFREHEZH 224257 412,129 260,530 896,916
Student and General Education BN —RREERS 302,223 302,368 17,822 622,413
Services
Other Activities H T 19,227 8,874 423 28,524
802,154 786,837 301,321 1,890,312
Total Expenditure - 2020 —EEFETH 5,691,753 2,595,737 579,336 8,866,826




10.1 Analysis of Institutional Support - Operating Expenses HHEIIRIZEEMZ 2

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (AB¥FITHIR)
The Group The University
KREREERE RE
2021 2020 2021 2020
Management and General ERR—MEIE
General Insurance —RRIRIRE 7,991 7,867 7,078 7,867
Auditors’ Remuneration, Legal BT ~ RER 7,451 2,898 2,637 2,423
and Other Professional Fees HEEBER
Other Operating Expenses Hithi& &% 162,569 56,417 37,606 53,176
178,011 67,182 47,321 63,466
Premises and Related Expenses BFENEEZH
Repair and Maintenance HIZRIRE 215,326 232,963 201,445 219,745
Utilities KENERE 152,587 110,063 114,309 110,063
Government Rent and Rates =B A A 75,145 73,720 70,780 73,462
Security, Environment and Safety REIRIBENZEEE 13,172 6,539 12,441 5,776
Services
Property Insurance YIZEREER 5,626 3,101 5,594 3,083
Other Operating Expenses Hith & & p% 2,942 642 - -
464,798 427,028 404,569 412,129
Student and General Education BEN—BBESE
Services
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries 2% - BENIEBE 170,043 176,960 150,708 153,833
Resident Halls Expenses BYESHR 52,230 44 574 51,582 44,039
Student Exchange Programme BARmetEl 5,194 20,276 5,194 20,269
Careers, Counseling Services and 5 BRI AEBE 47,453 53,639 47,877 54,702
Student Activities RINEEN
Student/Extra-curriculum Activities ~ B4EERINEE 1,256 3,412 - -
Alumni Affairs R B4R ETE 5,227 5,195 5,227 5,195
Sports and Other Facilities BEE NEMERE 3,891 3,300 3,813 3,278
Student Financial Aids B4 IS E R 78 57 - -
Student and Staff Health Services B N 3 S (R (2 AR TS 6,439 20,254 6,439 20,279
Other Operating Expenses Hith#T &% 2,570 3,497 651 773
294,381 331,164 271,491 302,368
Other Activities HAhE%
University Press REBHRR#E 4,968 6,345 4,970 6,345
Catering Services fERARTE 3,586 2,201 2,353 2,201
Souvenir Counter fEmEl (40) 262 (39) 262
Miscellaneous HIEZ N 8,679 2,762 19 66
17,193 11,570 7,303 8,874
954,383 836,944 730,684 786,837

Note: $4,723,841 (2020: $5,133,451) was spent on the . CARE Programme which was included in the Student

and General Education Services.

Mzt BER—BRAEEHEASESERHEEINANEEt+=E=F\EE+—Rx(CE=TF A

B—t=B=TE&EA+—7)°

a



10.2 Remuneration of Senior Staff =HRE T EE

The number of staff members in the University whose remuneration exceeded HK$ 1,800,000 during the years ended
30 June 2021 and 2020, irrespective of the funding sources and listed by the various bands, are as follows:
NEELREFEHSENEICEHEBBE—BN\TETNETARNUSERIIWT :

The Group The University
REBERE KE
2021 2020 2021 2020
$ $

1,800,001 - 1,950,000 140 143 135 142
1,950,001 - 2,100,000 88 74 86 74
2,100,001 - 2,250,000 91 84 91 80
2,250,001 - 2,400,000 64 68 63 65
2,400,001 - 2,550,000 40 39 35 39
2,550,001 - 2,700,000 37 31 37 31
2,700,001 - 2,850,000 21 23 20 22
2,850,001 - 3,000,000 18 14 16 14
3,000,001 - 3,150,000 13 10 10 9
3,150,001 - 3,300,000 5 8 4 8
3,300,001 - 3,450,000 10 9 10 7
3,450,001 - 3,600,000 6 4 6 4
3,600,001 - 3,750,000 6 8 5 6
3,750,001 - 3,900,000 2 6 2 6
3,900,001 - 4,050,000 5 4 5 4
4,050,001 - 4,200,000 7 7 5 7
4,200,001 - 4,350,000 9 8 9 8
4,350,001 - 4,500,000 7 5 7 5
4,500,001 - 4,650,000 4 2 4 2
4,650,001 - 4,800,000 - 1 - 1
4,800,001 - 4,950,000 2 1 2 1
4,950,001 - 5,100,000 3 6 3 6
5,100,001 - 5,250,000 4 3 4 3
5,250,001 - 5,400,000 4 3 3 3
5,400,001 - 5,550,000 4 5 4 5
5,550,001 - 5,700,000 1 - 1 -
5,700,001 - 5,850,000 - 2 - 2
5,850,001 - 6,000,000 3 3 3 3
6,150,001 - 6,300,000 1 1 1 1
6,300,001 - 6,450,000 1 - 1 -
7,500,001 - 7,650,000 1 1 1 1
Total LS 597 573 573 559

No. of clinical staff members
(included in the total figure above)
RREEASHE (B8R LinEF) 147 122 134 122

Remuneration includes salaries, contributions to retirement schemes, housing benefits, contract-end gratuities
and other allowances.
i 2IEFE - BKEMUIR - BEEEN - 2R E SRE hERS -



11. RESTRICTED FUNDS SHEE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (ABEFITHIR)
The Group
AR
Capital Endowment Building Research  Others Investments Total
Funds Funds Funds Project (Note 11.1) Revaluation
Funds Reserve
(Non-Recycling)
BEER WRIER Hih FEIEERE
HEES #BrEE 2EE HEE (MR 1) EEREE ]

Balance - 1 July 2019 —E—hFEtBA—H 5,413,241 4,165,101 232,386 1,102,279 7,748,237 181,564 18,842,808
Transfer from/(to) the HE/(E)2EmIER 1,320,640 273,527 (31,894) 435,331 (349,536) (61,883) 1,586,185

Statement of Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer HE iR 23,486 534,810 43,567  (62,923) (500,843) - 38,097
Balance - 30 June 2020 —S-SFAH=1TAR 6,757,367 4,973,438 244,059 1,474,687 6,897,858 119,681 20,467,090

and 1 July 2020 —E2-FtA—-A&8R
Transfer from the EBEIENEE 573,915 1,125,338 7,227 88,744 1,004,279 15,280 2,814,783

Statement of Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer EERCER 62,049 78,004 (8,567)  (36,925) (65,200) - 39,361
Balance - 30 June 2021 —s-—-FAH=1+H 7,393,331 6,176,780 242,719 1,526,506 7,846,937 134,961 23,321,234

=i




11. RESTRICTED FUNDS SHEZ

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(Continued #8)
(BT THIR)

The University

RE
Capital Endowment Building Research Others Total
Funds Funds Funds Project (Note 11.2)
(Note) Funds
#ZEEE WRIER Hith
BEEE BEEE 2E B (BffsE 11.2) 4mEE
(PfEE)

Balance - 1 July 2019 “E|—-hE+tHB—H 2463476 3,912,457 232,386 1,102,279 9,622,503 17,333,101
Transfer from/(to) the BE/(E)ZEIRER 42,468 268,551 (31,894) 435,331 921,409 1,635,865

Statement of Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer EEEZER - 536,251 43,567 (62,923) (478,798) 38,097
Balance - 30 June 2020 —EB-ESFAXA=1H 2,505,944 4,717,259 244,059 1,474,687 10,065,114 19,007,063

and 1 July 2020 ER-—ES_SHt+tH—

BiE8R

Transfer (to)/from the H(E)5ZEiRE (1,950) 1,110,678 7,227 88,744 1,858,202 3,062,901

Statement of Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer EEEZER - 77,437 (8,567) (36,925) 7,416 39,361
Balance - 30 June 2021 —S--FXA=1+H 2,503,994 5,905,374 242,719 1,526,506 11,930,732 22,109,325

5

Note: $4,344 million (2020: $3,860 million) has been set aside as long-term endowment capital.
Mzt FAEEPTHNEN+=GETEHEERT(CI=ZE: Z+/\BATER)RBFEENERE -



11.1 The Group KEBEE

(i)

As at 30 June 2021, the balance of Others includes the Pommerenke Trust Fund of $692 million (2020: $650
million). The Pommerenke Trust Fund originates from a gift of land donated in 1970 to the Chung Chi College
by the Reverend Herbert Henry Pommerenke and Mrs. Jean Macpherson Pommerenke in commemoration
of Doctors Stewart and Julia Kunkle. The land gift was outside the precincts of the University and, since
1976 and in accordance with The Chinese University of Hong Kong Ordinance, has been vested in the
Board of Trustees of Chung Chi College on the same trusts and subject to the same terms and conditions
on which the land gift was then held.

HE_S_—FXA=1H EtESSREEERESAENTEER (CBFF . NMEATER) - REfMW
HEERERBE/IEINRERAR—NLETESL ZDoctors StewartNzJulia KunkleMEEZE4R =R ERA T ith - S
RS RM LTI ABEES - B—NtAEE - REFEPXABRANZRBREFSABRFEZEEEL
PR RNEFE A MR RIRR AR - BB REBRIRES -

The transfer to the various restricted funds, except for Capital Funds, is partially attributable to the donations
and benefactions of $1,260 million (2020: $1,583 million) as disclosed in note 7.

MREEESNU) - BIRESSAEENHDENEUARELERNEZ +Z/ATET (CT=2FF . +A/N
F=887) REE - BELBRZATEFTIRKMEETA -

11.2 The University X2

The transfer to the various restricted funds, except for Capital Funds, is partially attributable to the
donations and benefactions of $1,160 million (2020: $1,308 million) as disclosed in note 7.

REEET M  BREKFAESMEPIHGERBERBIRNGEZ T —EATER (CT28F . +=8TN\8
B) FiEE > BREREMRZATEFHIIRMEE7A -



NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESTRICTED FUNDS

Capital Funds

Capital Funds represent the balance of net book
value of the Fixed Assets which were financed by
non-deferred funds.

Endowment Funds

Endowment Funds represent donations received by
the University, usually with the stipulation from the
donors that the principal amounts should remain
intact in perpetuity or for a defined time period for
specific purposes.

Building Funds

Building Funds comprise the privately-funded capital
projects funded by external private organisations.

Research Projects Funds

Research Projects Funds represent the unspent
balance of projects with designated purpose in
carrying out research activities, including those
funded by the Government, related organisations
and external private organisations.

Others

Others comprise the unspent balance of funds
donated for the development of new colleges,
reserves generated from self-financed programmes,
ancillary services, scholarships and bursaries and
miscellaneous activities.

Investments Revaluation Reserve

Investment Revaluaton Reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in fair value of FVOCI equity
securities held at the end of the reporting period
and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies in note 2.9.

EREEMMERAR

BERSE

EEESRHFEENESRENEEEENREF
&
BXEE

BAESERABWINEERE  EERBESREL
EEREATE - BlEFERNEEECHEAERERS -

BEERESE

BREEESEEAMARBEDNERTRE -

MEEEEE

MREBEEEADAERENMEHNES - Hip
NEEBEEBRANTHRERA - HEAREBRETA
Wt

Hfth

Hit BIEABRERRTSRNBERE - BELE
MIE - WEARTS - REBE - PBEERRIFFTHINRERE

BB

KREShHERFHRARSAEHRNFENEREMEZEIEGS
BORBAERFESNEBLABEBED  WIRE
ST BURHIEE2.9R 8 -



12. UGC FUNDS

HEGES

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MA#&#F7t517R)

The Group and the University

RBBBH KD
General and UGC
Development Matching Total
Reserve Fund Grants
—MRBE = mEE
RREEE [iapEnER
Balance - 1 July 2019 “E-NFtH—B#ER 2,424,867 1,413,758 3,838,625
Transfer (to)/from the B(E)BEEWRER (190,303) 586,851 396,548
Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer EEMZEBIR (38,097) ) (38,097)
Balance - 30 June 2020 —E-FEFAA=THR 2,196,467 2,000,609 4,197,076
and 1 July 2020 —E-_EFtR—A%%
Transfer from the EHEZEEZR 16,431 124,801 141,232
Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer EEEZEBR (39,361) - (39,361)
Balance - 30 June 2021 —E--FRAZt &R 2,173,537 2,125,410 4,298,947




(1)

The General and Development Reserve Fund (“GDRF”) represents the unspent funds carried over from
one funding period (usually a triennium) to the next to facilitate the University’s longer-term planning and
new developmental needs. The balance of the GDRF at the end of a funding period should not exceed 20%
of the University’s approved Recurrent Grants other than the Earmarked Grants for Specific Purposes for
that funding period, and any excess amount is refundable to UGC.

—RNERERESERBERPAREER=F)ADAMIEES—ERPREABRETEINERNES - —
RARREHRESPRCERUARBEZECEEHHME(WHRARZEEHDERINNEZZ=+RR - M
BHRENSNEREABHTEHEESE -

$456 million of the UGC Matching Grants has been set aside as long-term endowment capital, to support
strategic initiatives such as endowed professorships, endowed scholarships and other indicated activities
in perpetuity. As at 30 June 2021, the balance of UGC Matching Grants - Endowment Fund of the Group
and the University is both $502 million.

HESHRHHDEPINOEATAEERCRFETEESNELRE - UZHRBUNERIEE - SEEEHIRE
fi - EPRBELEMSEEE - REFZ—FAA=TH - ABRELASBNHESEHRHEEE - BTESH
EHERARLBT_EHET -



13.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES REASMERE

E dinth ds of H K doll (ABEETFITHIR)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) ™ The University

RE
2021 2020

Unlisted Shares, at cost FEEHBER - RAAS 2,464,747 1,611,257

The University injected $800 million (2020: $1,000 million) into CUHK Health Limited, and converted a
shareholder’s loan receivable of $53 million into an investment in CUHK Shenzhen Research Institute Company
Limited in this financial year.

ARBRAMBEEAEEDINABEREGRABTENGET (CT=2F | +ERIAB—ELT=08THRIRKRR
ERESHBPRAERGFY)ERASNIRE -

Name of company Place of Percentage of equity held Principal activities

incorporation FhEkEEssIE

and operation

SRR ST by the University by a subsidiary

NGIEE iR 2, HABRE HMBAERE EEXRH
The Chinese University of  Hong Kong Note To sponsor, develop, promote and
Hong Kong Foundation & FfitEE encourage public participation in
Limited public services
BEDXKRBEEE &~ R - BERFRME AR
BRAE) SHNHER
Information Networking Hong Kong 100% To provide technology transfer
Laboratories Limited * aiE and investment holding
AEREARAERAE] * R LI EER
PA Company Limited Hong Kong 100% To provide services which are
E8EMRAE &E charitable and educational in
nature
RMMEERBELERRE
HKIX Hong Kong Limited * British Virgin 100% Investment holding
Islands REER
REBEREHE
The Hong Kong Internet Hong Kong 100% To provide internet services
eXchange Limited &E Rt E BB AR AR TS
BEEFRE A B
BIRAE]
CUCAMed Company Limited Hong Kong 100% To promote Chinese medicine in
h AP EERIZHERAE gt Hong Kong

EEEEEPE



Name of company

yNSIE=E

Percentage of equity held
FrEtEgmitE

Place of
incorporation
and operation

by the University by a subsidiary
HABHEE

G DAY
ek

Principal activities

HMEBASIHE IEFRH

The Hong Kong Institute of
Biotechnology Limited

BRI R
BRAE

IBSOmed Bioscience Limited
ERBIEFRAE

CUHK Shenzhen Research
Institute Company Limited *

EPAMERGEINERASE) *

Asia Diabetes Foundation
Limited *

The Chinese University of
Hong Kong (Shenzhen)
Foundation Limited

BEDXKRB(RNEEE
BIRAE]

CUHK Health Limited
BEEPIXAEEBFRASG]

Note
P s

Hong Kong
aE

Hong Kong 100%

&

The People’s
Republic
of China
hEAR

HE

100%

Note
P s

Hong Kong
'BE

Note

Hong Kong
&E

Hong Kong 100%

&E

To develop an internationally
recognised biotechnology
industry in Hong Kong
EEEERBERZBUTNEMRE
Iz

To provide services and
manufacture products related to
biotechnology

Rt EY R AR IR M E
mEE

To carry out research, technology
transfer and related technical
services on advanced technology,
provide consulting service
on international technology
development, and manage
owned properties
ST AIER S « EE R ARR T
BR#S - BFRFIE 2548 - BEY
FEEmER

To organise activities and
research regarding diabetes on
a non-profit making basis

AR R AR M BA R HE PR BT E
ENRHRSE

To sponsor, develop, promote and
encourage public participation in
public services

B BE - BENBRITEATR
SHNHER

To develop and manage medical
centres to provide high-quality
healthcare services and support
for teaching, research, and
clinical activities undertaken by
the Faculty of Medicine of CUHK
in furtherance of the educational
objective and aspiration of CUHK
EREREDONEHEBEEER
o Mg —SHEHF AP IS
BESRNHDE - RRAHMEE
EE) o WEBREBPXABREH
HIRKFRBEE



Name of company Place of Percentage of equity held Principal activities

incorporation FREtEREESILE
and operation

Mk by the University by a subsidiary

NE)RE eI, HABRE HMBASRE IEXRB
CUHK Medical Centre Limited Hong Kong 100% To provide high quality private
BREDIABESDN a8 healthcare services to support
E={1NS| sustainable development of

medical and health services
in Hong Kong, to strengthen
the training of healthcare
professionals and facilitate
application of research results
and clinical service innovations
through the operation of a private
teaching hospital

SEFEPNABERUEES
AEERFINTTRHERE - 15
EEEEE N BN SRR AR

BERE
CUHK Medical Centre Hong Kong Note To provide financial assistance
Charitable Foundation e MfsE to needy patients for receiving
Limited adequate medical treatment
BEREPIARBEBREZETS offered by the CUHK’s group of
BRAE] private hospital and/or clinic, to

organise activities of a charitable
nature for public benefit that
promotes health and offers
learning opportunity for the
purpose of advancing education,
innovation and treatment in the
medical field

SEMBE#EARMREEEN
 BEAGEBPXARBETH
FAREBRR /BT IO FEIETN
BER  TENSEEEEHE
ERENMRMBENTIES - 12
AEBRANNE - AIFLEE

IPYSI= N
CUHK Medical Clinic Hong Kong 100% To provide medical clinic services
Limited 'BE to facilitate the operations of
" the CUHK Medical Centre, to
3 B . ,
§;§¢'§T¥§ﬁ§¢“u facilitate application of research
ARATE] results and training of healthcare

professionals, and to deliver high
quality ambulatory healthcare
services to the community at
transparent and affordable prices
RUEMFIZEER - MEEE
B RBERZEE - (BERH
RRERRIER - SFIS5EEA
& RUSZEAELEENERS -
BT ARBEENEER



Name of company

yNCIEE

Place of
incorporation
and operation

sEM AT A
AR,

Percentage of equity held

by the University by a subsidiary

Principal activities

EBRRH

CUHK Medical Services
Limited

EED X AEBERES
BRRAE]

TR at CUHK Company
Limited
hREHERAE]

Hong Kong
aE

Hong Kong
&E

*  Companies not audited by KPMG.
*  EENEIMRESEFLIFREEEEFMERAAsE -

HBAEREE HMEASNE
100%
Note
FitEE

Note: These companies are limited by guarantee without share capital.
Mict: BLNSIRERBRAE - WREZMES -

To serve as a platform for
employing and engaging
doctors on service contracts
to provide medical services
under the clinical governance of
CUHK Medical Centre Limited;
and/or providing healthcare
management and consultancy
services to collaborative partners
to broaden the scope and network
of healthcare services provided
by CUHK Medical Centre Limited
and/or its affiliated companies
{ER—EF & AR S A BS 5 R IR
MBLELRTBPXAEREEDLE
PRSI R RETE IR (M B RARTS
KRt EE MR TS
BN - UIRATEDXAKEESR
thiInBRAE) N/ EH AR A EIFhER
A ESRER AR TS o S5 B Ko AE

To promote in conjunction with
The Chinese University of Hong
Kong, science and technology
research, education, teaching,
learning, art and translation of
knowledge into commercialisation
practices

BAh X KBS 1E - [BERLASE -
HE B8 KRB ELEE
FER



14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES #&&4%
The Group The University
REEGS KE
Cost R
At 1 July 2019, 30 June —_2-h&FtRA—H- - -
2020 and 1 July 2020 —EBEFA=TH
P =it = 2y ol = Bl S F 51
Additions 1Ehn 65,912 -
Exchange Differences PE =R 1,994 -
At 30 June 2021 B —F;xA=TH4&R 67,906 -
Accumulated Depreciation Zi&iFE
At 1 July 2019, 30 June —S-h&FtA—H- - -
2020 and 1 July 2020 —ECBFRA=1H

R_FBBFtRA—H&R

Charge for the Year TERE 2,031 -
At 30 June 2021 B —FA=1H#ER 2,031 -
Net Book Value at —E-—-FRA=THERERE

30 June 2021

The balance of the Group’s investment properties
represent the commercial investment properties
situated in the PRC. The Group’s and the University’s
Hong Kong investment properties were originated
from building gifts and stated at zero cost in the
Group’s and the University’s Statements of Financial
Position respectively. For disclosure purpose, the
Group’s investment properties situated in the PRC
were revalued as at 30 June 2021 by an independent
firm of surveyors, Shenzhen Touchstone Evaluation
and Consultancy Co., Ltd, while the Group’s and
the University’s Hong Kong investment properties
were revalued as at 30 June 2021 by independent
firms of surveyors, Cushman & Wakefield Limited for
Hong Kong commercial investment properties and
Dudley Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited for Hong
Kong residential investment properties. All the firms
have appropriate qualifications and experience in
the valuation of properties.

65,875 -

ABRENREYRREENRCREANERRE
MR - REEERABMREBNIRENFREYR
Bl MUTBWEBREALZRES RABHBRRE -
BERKEER - ABRENABNREYRRTS
T—EXNAZTHS BB NG ERRFT AT
FYHEHH L wEMELEEREGRASR
NREANERREYE  SERERBURSE
ENERRENENENTAEM(ERE)AR
AERMREBEENTESRENVFELEE -



14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Pursuant to the surveyors’ valuations, the
Group’s and the University’s recurring fair value
measurements categorised into Level 3 for the
commerical investment properties situated in
the PRC at the end of the reporting period were
approximately $93.4 million and $nil respectively
(2020: $nil for both the Group and the University).
The Group’s and the University’s recurring fair
value measurements categorised into Level 3 for
Hong Kong commercial investment properties at
the end of the reporting period were approximately
$27.0 million (2020: $29.6 million). The Group’s and
the University’s recurring fair value measurements
categorised into Level 3 for Hong Kong residential
investment properties at the end of the reporting
period were approximately $235.0 million and
$nil respectively (2020: $223.0 million and $nil
respectively).

Such fair value measurement of the Group’s and the
University’s investment properties fall under Level
3 of the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement, as it uses
significant unobservable inputs. The valuation meth-
odology for 2021 remains the same as prior year.
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15. FIXED ASSETS EEZE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MAZ#ETFITHIR)

The Group
REERE
Equipment,
Construction Furniture Art Properties
(Note PfizE) in and Fittings Collection Leased for
Land Buildings Progress &fii~fHE Zfiff OwnUse Total
Tith EE EETRE KK Wi HEERYE 5
Cost 7%
At 1 July 2020 - 452,009 10,483,508 107,050 5,770,361 24,261 33,394 16,870,583
+tHA—B#%&%
Additions b2 | - 212,363 134,761 875,925 340 30,954 1,254,343
Disposals HE - - - (177,996) - - (177,996)
Exchange Differences FE S A= - 1,181 - 23 - - 1,204
At 30 June 2021 =S
ANA=1TH&E 452,009 10,697,052 241,811 6,468,313 24,601 _ 64,348 17,948,134
Accumulated Depreciation E&HE
At 1 July 2020 —BTEF 137,846 3,164,580 - 3,287,256 - 15,608 6,605,290
+tHA—B#e
Charge for the Year eEEE 11,636 300,922 - 435499 - 15,097 763,154
Written Back on Disposal HEZDIE - - - (176,997) - (176,997)
At 30 June 2021 =
ANB=1TBH#&8R 149482 3,465,502 - 3,545,758 - 30,705 7,191,447
Net Book Value at —B-—-FXA=1+H
30 June 2021 IREEE 302,527 7,231,550 241,811 2,922,555 24,601 33,643 10,756,687
Cost 7%
At 1 July 2019 —FhEF 452,009 8,043,272 2,870,997 4,057,205 24,224 30,367 15,478,074
+tHA—B#%&%
Additions b)) | - 139,882 1,344,407 393,737 167 3,027 1,881,220
Transfer Et - 2,300,354 (4,108,354) 1,808,000 - - -
Disposals HeE - - - (4885581)  (130) - (488,711)
At 30 June 2020 " =S
NA=1TH#8% 452,009 10,483,508 107,050 5,770,361 24,261 33,394 16,870,583
Accumulated Depreciation E&HE
At 1 July 2019 -y =3 126,211 2,942,817 - 3,431,485 - - 6,500,513
+tHA—B#e
Charge for the Year e 11,635 221,763 - 340,936 - 15,608 589,942
Written Back on Disposal ~ HHE&#&E#% - - - (485,165) - - (485,165)
At 30 June 2020 -t =
ANB=1TBH#8R 137,846 3,164,580 - 3,287,256 - 15,608 6,605,290
Net Book Value at —EB-FFAXA=1H
30 June 2020 IREEE 314,163 7,318,928 107,050 2,483,105 24,261 17,786 10,265,293
Note: - Land refers to “Interest in leasehold land held for own use”.

for use by the University under medium-term leases and is stated at nil value.

s - ihEIEERALH -

The properties, including land and buildings, are located in Hong Kong. Leasehold land of the Shatin campus is granted by the Government

- FIEERSELIMLERYESE - ABANESHRRERT AR BREREZ BN LB EERE - MIATHATIR



15. FIXED ASSETS EIEZE (Continued %)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MAB#EFITHI7R)
The University
AL
Equipment,
Construction Furniture Art Properties
(Note Hfiz¥) in and Fittings Collection Leased for
Land Buildings Progress #%fii~&%E  £fif OwnUse Total
tith EE EETRE I WiEm HEERAYsE @5
Cost 27%:
At 1 July 2020 =St = 5 452,009 8,104,875 63,897 3,939,107 20,736 23,936 12,604,560
+tHA—B%&8
Additions & - 74,356 72,920 313,927 340 11,119 472,662
Disposals HE - - - (176,624) - - (176,624)
At 30 June 2021 - =S
ANA=1TB#8F 452,009 8,179,231 136,817 4,076,410 21,076 35,055 12,900,598
Accumulated Depreciation REHE
At 1 July 2020 - =S 137,846 3,147,454 - 3,274,838 - 10,046 6,570,184
tHB—B#e
Charge for the Year ITeEsE 11,636 224,955 - 297,727 - 9,835 544,153
Written Back on Disposal ~ HE#EIE - - - (175,678) - - (175,678)
At 30 June 2021 %
ANA=1TH#ER 149482 3,372,409 - 3,396,887 - 19,881 6,938,659
Net Book Value at —®g--fFXA=1+H
30 June 2021 IREFE 302,527 4,806,822 136,817 679,523 21,076 15,174 5,961,939
Cost [27%:3
At 1 July 2019 —F-hEF 452,009 7,964,993 14,198 4,036,308 20,699 22,766 12,510,973
+tH—B#%&8
Additions 1Ehn - 139,882 49,699 388,751 167 1,170 579,669
Transfer [k - - - - - - -
Disposals e - - - (485952)  (130) - (486,082)
At 30 June 2020 =St 5
ANE=1+B#8% 452,009 8,104,875 63,897 3,939,107 20,736 23,936 12,604,560
Accumulated Depreciation RTEIE
At 1 July 2019 —FhE=E 126,211 2,927,962 - 3,419,211 - - 6,473,384
tHA—B%&
Charge for the Year b+ 11,635 219,492 - 338,163 - 10,046 579,336
Written Back on Disposal HEZEIER - - - (482,536) - - (482,536)
At 30 June 2020 - =S
ANA=1H#8F 137,846 3,147,454 - 3,274,838 - 10,046 6,570,184
Net Book Value at —E-EFKXA=1H
30 June 2020 IREFE 314,163 4,957,421 63,897 664,269 20,736 13,890 6,034,376
Note: - Land refers to “Interest in leasehold land held for own use”.

for use by the University under medium-term leases and is stated at nil value.

BfEE: -

TR EE AL -

The properties, including land and buildings, are located in Hong Kong. Leasehold land of the Shatin campus is granted by the Govermment

- FFEEXREELIMREREYESE - ARFAUBERMERTFARAIRY BRFRE BN LIE - ARE - WATRATIER



15.1 Right-of-use Assets EFEEE

The analysis of the net book value of Right-of-use Assets by class of underlying assets is as follows:

REEFRNATHERAEEENREFENT ¢
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MABE#EFITHITR)

The Group The University
REER X2
2021 2020 2021 2020
Ownership Interests in Leasehold Land FASEHA+ER+EM
and Buildings with Remaining Lease &t ithNEREHI5E
Term Between 10 and 50 Years Btz 335,927 349,161 335,927 349,161
Properties Leased for Own BAITERASTIRRAY
Use, Carried at Depreciated Cost HEERE 33,643 17,786 15,174 13,890

369,570 366,947 351,101 363,051

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in the Statements of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure is as follows:
FHEZRDEREESEHNIHIEE SNT ¢

The Group The University
KRESEERE RE
2021 2020 2021 2020
Depreciation charge of right-of- RS EERIME AR
use assets by class of underlying EENIRE
assets:
Ownership interests in leasehold HETHEEREN
land and buildings e 13,234 13,234 13,234 13,234
Properties Leased for Own Use HEERYE 15,097 15,608 9,835 10,046
28,331 28,842 23,069 23,280
Interest on lease liabilities HEEaENFIR 1,175 723 294 442
Expense relating to short-term FEHIHEMER - 709 - 709

leases

Expenses related to leases oflow-  EHEEEHSEES
value assets, excluding short-term FAMER - T8E
leases of low-value assets REECRESEE 435 460 377 460



Note: The Group and the University have obtained the right to control the use of several properties for a period

F5E:

of time through tenancy arrangements. The lease typically runs for an initial period of one to ten years with
certain renewal options available. Except for lease covenants mainly related to the maintenance and use of
the leased asset that are commonly found in lease arrangements, there are no other covenants or restrictions
imposed by the lease agreement. The leased asset may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

During the year, additions to properties leased for own use were $31.0 million and $11.1 million for the Group
and the University respectively. The amounts were related to the capitalised lease payments payable under
new tenancy agreements. Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity analysis of lease liabilities
are set out in notes 21(b) and 23 respectively.

ABEELADEBAERICERSE—REBANZEHIRIEYRERNET - AENMREREESE—E+F
WERERBEHNEE - FREREAERPHRENERREENEAEEEERRNEERMI - AERFHEMEZN
HRFIHE - HEEETSREEERER -

FR - ABRENABHHEEERYESIIENT =F—88xM—FT—B8—+t8x - ZEREREFEERZ
BN ESMCESEMRERH - AEREREMENME LB ER BRI B STERHIEE21(0) 5423



16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS H#F&EE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (AB#FITHIR)

The Group
RESEERE
Development
Costs Trademarks Total
BASERLAS EHE imER

Cost 57

At 1 July 2020 TETEFHH—H4&R 20,523 - 20,523

Additions 0 19,522 1" 19,533

At 30 June 2021 “EC—FA=1H#&R 40,045 11 40,056
Accumulated Amortisation BRI

At 1 July 2020 —sS_SEtE-ER 7 - 7

Charge for the Year s 3,123 2 3,125

At 30 June 2021 —EC—FAA=+ALR 3,140 2 3,142
Net Book Value at —ESE-—-XKBA=1H 36,905 9 36,914

30 June 2021 IREFE
Cost 57

At 1 July 2019 —Ss—-hFtBA—B#ER 17,394 - 17,394

Additions 1 3,129 - 3,129

At 30 June 2020 S| A=THEERS 20,523 - 20,523
Accumulated Amortisation EiaEH

At 1 July 2019 —S—hFEtH—B&S - - -

Charge for the Year i Eis ] 17 - 17

At 30 June 2020 —ECEEAA=HRER 17 - 17
Net Book Value at —ES-SFAA=1H 20,506 _ 20,506

30 June 2020

IR B(E




17. INVESTMENTS &

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A #E#F7t5lIR)
17.1 Non-Current Investments JFFiRENIIRE
”I The Group The University
RERRLED KRER
2021 2020 2021 2020
Financial Assets measured at FRISSER ARG 2/
Amortised Cost ERIEE
Unlisted JELT 1,095,870 1,152,438 1,095,870 1,152,438
Listed iy}
Hong Kong &8 416,889 556,023 416,889 556,023
Overseas =g 232,638 314,385 232,638 314,385
1,745,397 2,022,846 1,745,397 2,022,846
Equity Securities designated at ERHMEERSEES
FVOCI (non-recycling) AEENESRHEE 178,846 159,083 - -
Financial Assets measured ERiESRARE
at FVPL AENERIEE
Unlisted Equity Securities IE LR AN 8,046 7,913 8,046 7,913
Equity Securities Listed in s A
Hong Kong - 622 - -
Unit Trusts Listed in & LhEMER
Hong Kong BEE 3,977 3,384 - -
Limited Partnership Investments [RESBIRE 2,665,354 2,030,733 2,665,354 2,030,733
(Note 1) (Pt5E1)
Alternative Investments SEERE 906,610 640,869 906,610 640,869
(Note 2) (MtzE2)
3,583,987 2,683,521 3,580,010 2,679,515
Investments in Unconsolidated IS EHIBAS]
Subsidiaries, at Cost BB - HERAS - 110,257 - -
Non-Current Investments JEREIRE 5,508,230 4,975,707 5,325,407 4,702,361




Note:(1) These investments represent the University’s equity interest as a limited partner in three limited partnerships
and are stated at fair value. The University intends to hold these investments for long-term purposes. The
main limited partnership, which started in July 2006, targets to maximise long-term risk-adjusted returns by
investing in proprietary funds, discretionary accounts and partnerships across a broad range of marketable
and alternative asset classes, including both publicly traded and privately held securities. All applicable
lock-up periods of the main limited partnership ended on or before 31 December 2011. The University
may withdraw all or any part of its Capital Account by giving the General Partner of the partnership written
advance notice of not less than one year prior to withdrawal.

In July 2009 and February 2010, the University joined as limited partners of two limited partnerships.
These limited partnerships were set up to invest in highly selective investment opportunities formerly held
by limited partners of other limited partnerships who have been forced to sell in the market at substantial
discounts their high-quality limited partnership interests in private equity, distressed credit, real estate,
natural resources, etc. The capital commitments will be drawn upon request from the General Partner.
The University’s original commitments of these two limited partnerships were approximately US$14.9
million and US$2.25 million respectively. As at 30 June 2021, the University has paid US$11.8 million and
US$2.0 million respectively to these two limited partnerships (2020: US$11.8 million and US$2.0 million).

In July 2017 and January 2018, the University joined as limited partners of six new limited partnerships.
On 31 December 2020, upon request from the General Partner to restructure and consolidate three limited
partnerships into one single partnership, the University withdrew from three limited partnerships and joined a
new limited partnership. The number of limited partnerships was revised from six to four. These four limited
partnerships were set up to invest in four different classes of private asset funds. The capital commitments
will be drawn upon request from the General Partner. The University’s total commitments were approximately
US$30.9 million. As at 30 June 2021, the University has paid US$14.9 million to these four limited partnerships.

(2) The alternative investments represent the University’s investments arranged and managed by an investment
consultant in the United States. These alternative investments include hedge funds, private equity funds
and limited partnership. The University intends to hold these alternative investments for long-term purposes.

MizE: (1) ABRRESBASOHNRARER=ERESBEEZHULABEIER - AEHEIRPHFILFRERR -
REIENREGBIIRENR"STAF AR - BRERENRGRERFREESNOR - ERREREE
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FFEREGHEENREREMHER=F—F+A=+—HER - KABUUBRL—FUSEHBENSBARN
ERRFDEOAZENER -
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HIREaFIEE - ELRESPEBRESELERE - BESEER - BlitE - RRERE - RERBELNE
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REGRIER - ABREMNRESBEEHEAERHEAAEEEEE - ENERESBEEEERERTIETRAN
IEEE RERBESNEREGBABRREZ - AEARENRBERAR=TENTEXT -BE=F=—F
AA=TH  ABSHKRET —THEATEETRNENRBERESHIEE -

(2) FERER—EXENREBRASIZANERE - SFEHPES WEREREESNRESHBRESE - K8
EIRMBERSSHERE -



17. INVESTMENTS 8%  (Continued #f)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (AB¥FITHIR)
17.2 Current Investments RENIRE

The Group The University
FEARZRE KEA
2021 2020 2021 2020
Financial Assets measured at  IRIBSHEAETER
Amortised Cost, ERIEE -
Amount Matured Within One Year —ERZIHA
Unlisted JEtiE 169,150 169,974 169,150 169,974
Listed sy
Hong Kong = 139,599 233,813 139,509 233,813
Overseas ok 108,600 267,488 108,600 267,488
417,349 671,275 417,349 671,275
Financial Assets measured BRSO E
at FVPL AENEREE
Debt Securities Ei%ES
Unlisted JELTE 186,282 129,586 161,594 108,581
Listed syl
Hong Kong Ei 15,953 17,830 - -
Overseas 591 76,945 100,256 - -
279,180 247,672 161,594 108,581
Equity Securities BAssE
Listed syl
Hong Kong it 366,706 294,974 133,530 108,780
Overseas o 2,145,854 1,588,371 2,090,526 1,549,332
2,512,560 1,883,345 2,224,056 1,658,112
Unit Trusts BhERES
Unlisted ELTH 1,249,305 654,222 1,193,815 650,512
Listed ]
Hong Kong i 623,850 525,722 549,133 486,478
Overseas o 402,233 177,257 336,186 145,870
2,275,388 1,357,201 2,079,134 1,282,860
5,067,128 3,488,218 4,464,784 3,049,553
Current Investments EENEE 5,484,477 4,159,493 4,882,133 3,720,828

Note: Cash balance held by the external investment managers of $91 million (2020: $54 million) for investment
purpose was included in the Group’s and the University’s Debt Securities.

Misy: SMEREKERENATBERT (T2 F  ATHEER) ARKREENZREREESEARBERIASR
HEBESD -



Total Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost (Including Non-Current and Current Investments) :
REHRATI ENTREERR(BEERBARENIRE) :

The Group The University
REEES RE
2021 2020 2021 2020
At amortised cost RBIHMZR 2,162,746 2,694,121 2,162,746 2,694,121
At fair value rAoREE 2,239,857 2,769,293 2,239,857 2,769,293

18. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT ASSETS ESRAENEE
18.1 Defined Benefit Scheme and Employee Retirement Benefit Assets FREFIFIEIRESRFENEE

The University operates a defined benefit scheme for staff under Terms of Service (C), The Chinese University
of Hong Kong Terms of Service (C) Staff Terminal Gratuity Scheme (“the TGS Scheme”). The TGS Scheme
is registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSQO”) and a MPF-exempted ORSO
scheme that is subject to Hong Kong ORSO and MPF (Exemption) regulations. Since the establishment of
a MPF Scheme on 1 December 2000, the TGS Scheme has been closed to new members. An actuarial
valuation of the Scheme is conducted every 3 years by Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited, the appointed
actuary to the Scheme. This defined benefit scheme exposes the University to actuarial risks such as interest
rate risk, salary risk and investment risk. The information about the TGS Scheme is summarised as below:

AREBERD(RERBIFMESRHE—EREN DS - B " B SORE(R)ERBIROES LR EETE
o ERTEIRRIBRISRNGTEIRGIEEM - hREHMLABEBIER)RGOT - ERBESHRRNRSRAE -8
WEBEREGR—FFTTF+A—HMIE - WREFDAEETBEZHMUE - EREFNDTEINBEEGE
EB=FHHSTNREEBRASNET - BBERE - X2EHEEERE - GIANFIR - FEIEMALE RS - E57
EN T EINERSRMNT

(i) The amount of net assets recognised in the Statements of Financial Position are as follows:
SRR R AR BT -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAE#FT5I7R)
The Group and the University

REBEENAE
2021 2020
Present Value of Funded Obligations TEEEZIRE (34,823) (40,829)
Fair Value of Scheme Assets FEIEECARER 41,964 47,016
Net Assets FEE 7,141 6,187

A portion of the above assets is expected to be recovered in the next twelve months. However, it is not
practicable to segregate this amount from the amount recoverable after more than one year, as future reductions
in contributions will also relate to future services rendered, future changes in actuarial assumptions and
market conditions. The University is expected to pay $155,000 contribution to the Scheme for the financial
year 2021/22.

EBip LI EESTRERART=EARWE - EERASHHRERBEMEZNEEMEN - HINHRESREH
HIBRES  FBEERATBRRES - RILERE LT EREBE—F DN EESRIIR - AERPR"FT=-—F
TETUBEESD - BRI TABRAT TR -



(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Scheme assets allocation:
FTEIEED M -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAE#&EFITHIR)
The Group and the University
REBEENAE
2021
Amount % Amount %

=8 Bt it B3kt
Bonds (e - 24,381 52
Cash and Bank Deposits MEMBITER 41,964 100 22,635 48
41,964 100 47,016 100

All bonds held under the TGS Scheme have credit ratings of Baa2 or higher.
FrBEEEREMN @8 T8 BE519ESBaa2 Rl A EHEERTR -

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations (“DBO”):

RAENSEERENED
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MAE#F7T5I7R)
The Group and the University
REEENAER

2021 2020
Balance - Beginning of Year FHEEER 40,829 44,936
Benefits paid by the Scheme FrEIE I HIES (5,845) (7,074)
Current Service Cost REREMA 225 254
Interest Cost B A 102 541
Remeasurements recognised EiETEER (488) 2,172

(161) 2,967
Balance - End of Year TR 34,823 40,829
Changes in fair value of scheme assets:
FHEIRNEEZ AT EREE)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT ITHIR)

The Group and the University
REBERNAE

2021 2020
Balance - Beginning of Year FHFEER 47,016 52,965
Contributions paid to the Scheme mETEHEH Z R 218 303
Benefits paid by the Scheme RIS Rz (5,845) (7,074)
Return on Scheme Assets (excluding interest FTEIEEZERFIRRA 454 158

income) BR5L)

Interest Income FEWA 121 664
Balance - End of Year FREEER 41,964 47,016




(v) Income or Expenses recognised in Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure,
and Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure are as follows:

EREEENRAEZENTRAERCHEMT -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MAB#TFTIIR)
The Group and the University
REBEENAE
2021 2020
Current service cost IRERIEA S 225 254
Interest cost on DBO REMNBTEIZFEMA 102 541
Interest Income on Scheme Assets FrEIEEZABBA (121) (664
Net Expenses recognised in the Statements of REEUFRERZFXRH 206 131
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Effect of changes in financial assumptions B ISEREF IS E (574) 1,468
Effect of experience adjustments BB RAE R E 86 704
Return on Scheme Assets (excluding interest HEIEEZEERFI 2K A (454) (158
income) FRIM)
Total remeasurements recognised in REMZEEINSERZ (942) 2,014
Other Comprehensive Income HWEMEE
Total defined benefit (income)/expenses #EREFERUIA)/ZZ HER (736) 2,145

recognised

Changes in net assets recognised in the Statements of Financial Position are as follows:

EMBRRRAERC FEESENEE -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MAE#FITHIR)
The Group and the University
REEERAER
2021 2020
Balance - Beginning of Year TR 6,187 8,029
Contributions paid to the Scheme RIS TS 218 303
Net expenses on Scheme benefit recognised — REEWZFRIERDZ R EF & (206) (131)
in the Statements of Comprehensive Income FxH
and Expenditure
Total remeasurements recognised in REMEEW S-S Z 942 (2,014)
Other Comprehensive Income HWEMEE
Balance - End of Year FIRGERR 7,141 6,187

The net income/expense was recognised in the line item of staff cost and benefits under Management and
General in the Statements of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

BIRAZER EERZRPNEER N —REIEANE THM R R -



(vii)  Significant actuarial assumptions:

FERERF -
2021 2020
N % p.a. % p.a.
Weighted-average assumptions to determine FAMNETERISEEZINET (% p-a) (%o pa)
benefit obligations IR
Discount rate BRIRER 0.60 0.30
Rate of salary increase HFEIBER 2.50 3.00
Weighted-average assumptions to determine FAUGEREMZEA A2
defined benefit cost BTEIEER
Discount rate BRIRER 0.30 1.50
Rate of salary increase FEZIERE 3.00 4.30
(viii) Sensitivity analysis on DBO:
AENDEEZBRED
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAE#FIT5IR)
At 30 June 2021

Discount rate
- 50 basis points
+ 50 basis points

Salary increase rate
- 50 basis points
+ 50 basis points

Discount rate
- 50 basis points
+ 50 basis points

Salary increase rate
- 50 basis points
+ 50 basis points

BEIRER
WA B0 F
HEHIN5085F

EZIERR
508 F
EHIN5025F

BRIRE
RWAB0EEF
NS 0BEF

HFEMER
WA B0BEF
EANS0BEF

DBO will become

Increase/(Decrease) by

RIB=Z—8XA=1+H i,/ (Ri)
REMNSSEHE
35,518 695 2.00%
34,165 (658) (1.89%)
34,675 (148) (0.43%)
34,979 156 0.45%
At 30 June 2020

DBO will become

Increase/(Decrease) by

R ZFF,xH=1+H &/ (RIS
AREMNSEEHE
41,711 882  2.16%
39,996 (833) (2.04%)
40,645 (184)  (0.45%)
41,024 195  0.47%



(ix) Description of funding arrangements and funding policy that affect future contributions:

FEARRMRNEE LI ESBERRHA :

The Scheme follows a tri-annual funding valuation schedule. At each funding valuation, the contribution rate
for the following three years is set. The last funding valuation was of 30 June 2020 and it was assessed at
that valuation that the University would contribute 10% of active members’ salary for the period from 1 July
2020 to 30 June 2023.

ZETBEE=FEMNE - RR=FNURREBRESHERRTE - RANESHERR=S=TFA=1H "
T HEZGETREABE S _BF+tA—HAE"F_=F X A=1THBERRENFER S Z MR -

(x) Maturity profile of DBO:
RENBREEZEEHEA ST

The weighted average duration of the DBO as at 30 June 2021 is 4.0 years (2020: 3.6 years).
REFBZ—FXA=+THREMNBEEZINMETIIFERRA.0F (T2 2FF : 365F)°

Projected benefit payments (undiscounted) taking into account estimated future employee service and salary growth
based on Actuary’s aforementioned assumptions are:

RIS LB FRER 2 AR IR AT RR(ERER B TRKRRFEHNFHFEIER)SNNT -
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TTHIR)

Beyond 5 years but
Within 5 years within 10 years Beyond 10 years
5 A 5 Fi&{E10 FA BiB 105

Expected benefit payments FEHIFIZE{TTR

At 30 June 2021 RZTF_—&FxB=1H 23,768 4,154 9,073
At 30 June 2020 RZTTZ"TF;xA=1H 27,247 6,392 9,395

18.2 Defined Contribution Scheme SRE#FREE

In addition to the defined benefit scheme disclosed in note 18.1, the Group operates two defined contribution
schemes, i.e. The Chinese University of Hong Kong Staff Superannuation Scheme (1995) (“the 1995 Scheme”)
and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”). The 1995 Scheme is a MPF-exempted ORSO-
registered scheme. Employer contributions to these defined contribution schemes are as follows:

FRBftEE 18. 1 FTiR MR EF &Ra1E] - KBERTR/EMESRHETMETFRNRERMRETE - (FBPXRBHEE
AEEFTE (—AAFR) (T -AAAEE )REFIMAERETE (T BEEEE ) ) - —AAAFEIREEERINGTE
1B T 5EM - AT 2 mfE R E HET IR EL A EE MR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ABEETFITHIR)

The Group The University
REEE K2
2021 2020 2021 2020
The 1995 Scheme —hhhasEtE 136,848 146,835 136,319 146,177
The MPF Scheme HEiEEEE 210,189 190,070 201,263 188,271

Total Contributions MR 347,037 336,905 337,582 334,448



19. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JAZB#ETFITHIR)

19.1 Contract Assets

SHNEERSHAER

The Group The University
AR A
2021 2020 2021 2020

Receivables from contracts with
customers within the scope of

e (BEMBEREE

AlY SE151RKREEE

72 33,726
HKFRS 15 FwaEmmgsy 20072 99720 29597
19.2 Contract Liabilities The Group The University
REEES RE
2021 2020 2021 2020
Student Fees Received in Advance JEEE L EmgE 589,623 468,074 589,623 468,074
Caution Money Received {REFS 16,820 16,970 16,820 16,970
Others Hith 3,455 - . -
609,898 485,044 606,443 485,044
Less: Non-Current portion of Contract O amaEERE 31 - - -
Liabilities R
Current portion of Contract Liabilities anaEREmG 609,867 485,044 g0p443 485,044
Movement in Contract Liabilites ~&#I8 EHIEE)
The Group The University
REEE KRB
2021 2020 2021 2020
Balance - Beginning of Year FEEER 485,044 531,140 485,044 531,140

Decrease in Contract Liabilities as a result EIEBDEMEEERH
BRBMATEIE  (475,667) (519,264)
in the Contract Liabilities at the beginning &R ERL

of recognising income that was included

of the period

Increase in Contract Liabilities as a result
of billing in advance of service

Balance - End of Year

FEEERBSEMAET 600,521
maIMEHaREN

473,168

(473,062) (519,264)

594,461 473,168

FRER 609,898

485,044

606,443 485,044




20.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
FEURRSR ~ FAAHFRIE K H b FEU R

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (BABE#ET5T5I7R)

The Group The University
REBEERE RE
2021 2020 2021 2020
Loan to Subsidiary B FHIEAE] - 53,490 - 53,490
Accounts Receivable FEUTBR TR 885,086 974,060 863,402 965,414
Sundry Deposits, Prepayments and HIBRSE ~ TAMIRIENR 283,121 306,053 78,543 74,872
Other Receivables HAthFEIER
Student Loans BLEmM 2,812 3,145 1,690 1,937
Current Accounts with Subsidiaries Pt 2 EI1ERERTR - 13,465 26,780 32,356
1,171,019 1,350,213 970,415 1,128,069
Less: Non-Current portion of Accounts iR FEWERTR ~ FARTR
Receivable, Prepayments and TE N E {th FEUR
Other Receivables FETRENER 1D 178,369 254,861 - 53,490
Current portion of Accounts Receivable, FEMTARTR ~ FRITFIE R
Prepayments and Other Receivables ELith SRR BN SR 17 992,650 1,095,352 970,415 1,074,579

Student loans are granted to local undergraduate and postgraduate students of The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. The amount of the loan depends on the student’s financial hardship and/or the loan received from the
“Tertiary Students Finance Scheme-Publicly-Funded Programmes” or the terms of the respective loan schemes.
All student loans are interest-free and repayable by instalments within a stipulated period or upon graduation.
If the borrower ceases to be a student of the University, all loans will then be repayable immediately.
BLEMEBEMTFERBPNABNEAR AR R Z BHINSHEE - EMHEHESRFBENMBRER/WZBER

TEE FREEEEHRE ) PARESHNERE - FIENBLEERYAREER  EEEREEENHREASE
B8 - NEEAER FERLLBENSD - FREEMREILANEE -

The current accounts with subsidiaries were unsecured, interest-free and without fixed terms of repayment. Other
than part of student loans, all of the other accounts receivable and prepayments are expected to be recovered
or recognised as expenditure within one year.

MR ASEREMDEER - RERBRHTEEHR - RNOBLEEMI - HttBEERMRTAREE—F AR EIkkE



21.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AGEING ANALYSIS B BRFRERES 22 4

The balance of accounts receivable mainly comprises bills receivable and interest receivable, with the following
ageing analysis as of the end of the reporting period:

FEUERFRAVERER E R SR RIERE VAR BIF B - EEERNREINHT

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (JAZB#EETFITHIR)

The Group The University
REBERE RE

2021 2020 2021 2020
Current FREIHA 867,320 947,235 857,722 940,014
Less than 1 month past due PR—ER 11,303 17,224 833 15,799
1 to 3 months past due —ERZE=EAR 1,991 3,934 1,098 3,934
More than 3 months but within 12 =ERE+_EAR 2,295 4,396 1,703 4,396

months past due

More than 12 months past due +ZEBAMUE 2177 1,271 2,046 1,271
Amount past due 225 17,766 26,825 5,680 25,400
Total PRI BR TR 48 EE 885,086 974,060 863,402 965,414

The Group and the University are satisfied that the past due amounts are likely to be recoverable. No impairment
loss is provided for the year, as the result of applying the expected credit loss model is insignificant (2020: $nil).
REEENABIIRRERPNERTMEF T REINE - MIXARREEHRERNE - BENRIERESERLTEKX -
At - TERFEEATRRAERE R (CT=FF : Tx) -

CASH AND DEPOSITS WITH BANKS ~ RERIRITHER

Cash and deposits with banks comprise:

RERRITEREE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (AB#EFITHIR)
The Group The University
RESEEEE KE2
2021 2020 2021 2020
Cash in Hand and with Banks and IRE - RIT N E 316,965 405,714 213,122 399,104
Other Financial Institutions RIS HMETER
Short-Term Time Deposits FoHAEHATERR 17,464,045 16,478,580 15,407,350 14,073,853

Cash and Short-term Deposits REMEHER 17,781,010 16,884,294 15,620,472 14,472,957
Time Deposits with Maturity over R—EZEIHTER
One Year =3 245,188 - 245,188 -

Cash and Deposits with Banks in the
Statements of Financial Position

Less: Time Deposits with Original
Maturity over Three Months

Cash and Cash Equivalents in the
Cash Flow Statements

BSIRRRAMIRE 18,026,198 16,884,294 15,865,660 14,472,957
RERITTER
i FRREB=ER

HIEHIERR 14,830,951 14,661,567 13,218,383 13,956,930
RERERANIRE
RIREZEEY 3,195,247 2,222,727 2,647,277 516,027

Note: Time Deposits of $12 million (2020: $12 million) were pledged to secure a loan from the Government

(note 25(b)).

izt —F=E8T (CF=FF | —TEER)ZTHERCER FERAHERERZER (FiEE25(0b))



Cash and Deposits with Banks included the following foreign currencies:

REMBITERNREESHE - ETIIMNEEE:

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars equivalent) (MAB#ZFETFTIIR)
The Group The University
REREGES RE

2021 2020 2021 2020
Australian Dollars AUD BT 2,739 2,503 2,735 2,503
Canadian Dollars CAD s 9 - - -
Euro EUR ExTT 11 5,097 9 5,097
Pounds Sterling GBP REE 12,443 13,318 3,846 5,657
Renminbi RMB PN 1,841,447 1,399,301 1,669,482 1,391,780
Singapore Dollars SGD F T 330 67 - -
United States Dollars uUsD ESH 730,165 893,143 536,330 621,742



(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:
REEREELEN R ERE

The tables below detail changes in the Group’s and the University’s liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the cash flow statements as cash flows from financing
activities.

TRAMABERNABRERETINEEET)  SERERIFFREEH - RETDEENIRRNREREGRE

HERERERDIERREFTNEENIRER -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAE#EFITHI7R)
The Group
ALt
Lease DeferredBank Loans Secured Total
Liabilities Capital for Loans
(note 23) Funds On-Lending nqte 25)
(note 27) to Staff
(note 25)
HEaR ETEE BfET HiEE o]
(fse3) =e BWMEZ  axm
(misr27) BITER  (gyzos)
(PftzE25)
Balance - At 1 July 2020 —F TR 17,631 3,528,432 237,660 3,845,009 7,628,732
Changes from Financing Cash Flows: F&EREmSEE) !
Decrease in Deferred Capital Funds  g@aEEL @Y - (62,287) - - (62,287)
Bank Loans Obtained for On- e ST RT - - 37,700 - 37,700
Lending to Staff =N
Repayment of Bank Loans for (EEEETHEE Y - - (26,740) - (26,740)
On-Lending to Staff SRITEY =R
Capital Element of Lease Rentals HitsEsyEs  (14532) - - - (14,532)
Paid =9
Interest Element of Lease Rentals EARE e ) (1,175) - - - (1,175)
Paid R4
Total Changes from Financing Cash  #2FtEREREEE) (15,707)  (62,287) 10,960 - (67,034)
Flows
Other changes: o Ry 30,954 - - - 30,954
Increase in Lease Liabilities from R MAFBL
Entering into New Leases During msIBEEREA
the Period &m
Interest Expenses FEZH 1,175 - - 151,808 152,983
Total Other Changes 48 L {4 E) 32,129 - - 151,808 183,937
— AR 34,053 3,466,145 248,620 3,996,817 7,745,635

Balance - At 30 June 2021




(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(BT TIT)

The Group
REBEE

Balance - At 1 July 2019

Changes from Financing Cash Flows:
Decrease in Deferred Capital Funds
Bank Loans Obtained for On-
Lending to Staff

Repayment of Secured Loans

Repayment of Bank Loans for
On-Lending to Staff

Capital Element of Lease Rentals
Paid

Interest Element of Lease Rentals
Paid

Total Changes from Financing Cash
Flows

Other changes:

Increase in Lease Liabilities from
Entering into New Leases During
the Period

Interest Expenses (note 15.1)

Capitalised Borrowing Costs

Total Other Changes

Balance - At 30 June 2020

Lease Deferred Bank Loans Secured Total
Liabilities Capital for Loans
(note 23) Funds On-Lending (note 25)
(note 27) to Staff
(note 25)
HEal BETEE ®ET  HES L
(MfzF23) =®=E HEEzZ B
(izr27) SRITEF  (HiEE25)
(Fft5E25)
TECEJFEYREE 30,367 3,551,347 200,000 3,703,287 7,485,001
MEREREEE
BEEEESZHY - (22919 - T (22,915)
BETHREZRT - - 39,100 - 39,100
™M
BEETIEEEN - ) ~ (4,000) (4,000)
EEEETRREL - - (1,440) - (1,440)
HRITEMR
XHAHOEEZER (15,763) - - - (15,763)
E3tn
TfTANBEZAE  (723) ; - - (723)
B3R
HRMERSREEE (16,486) (22,915) 37,660 (4,000) (5,741)
Hithsgs)
FIREBRSMMAFMELG 3,027 - - - 3,027
EE G =N
1=
FMEZH (FiEE15.1) 723 - - - 723
ERbEERE - - - 145722 145,722
HRE {th &S] 3,750 - - 145722 149,472
—FFERER 17,631 _3,528.432 237,660 3,845,009 7.628.732




(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(BT TIIR)

The University
K2

Lease DeferredBank Loans Secured

Liabilities Capital for  Loans
(note 23) Funds On-Lending (note 25)
(note 27) to Staff

(note 25)
HESE RTEE BET HiE9
(Mar23) E& BEEZ  @x
(Mzr27) BITER  (y2r05)

(Mt5E25)

Total

]

Balance - At 1 July 2020

Changes from Financing Cash Flows:
Decrease in Deferred Capital Funds
Bank Loans Obtained for On-
Lending to Staff

Repayment of Bank Loans for
On-Lending to Staff

Capital Element of Lease Rentals
Paid

Interest Element of Lease Rentals
Paid

Total Changes from Financing Cash
Flows

Other changes:

Increase in Lease Liabilities from
Entering into New Leases During
the Period

Interest Expenses (note 15.1)

Total Other Changes

Balance - At 30 June 2021

B FERR

AERERESLE
EEEEEE YD
BETFHREZRT

= £
REBETFARSEL
RITERR
ZTRMEEZER
Bn
ZTRMBEEZAR
Epin
BRERENELEH

Hithi)
RIRRARINAFR A
maIMEEaE
1
B (Ff5E15.1)
HEfh &)

TR FRER

13,505 3,528,432 237,660

12,000 3,791,597

- (70,487) - - (70,487)

: - 37,700 - 37,700

- - (26,740) - (26,740)
(9,705) - - - (9,705)
(294) - - - (294)
(9,999) (70,487) 10,960 - (69,526)
11,119 - - - M1
294 - - - 294
11,413 - - - 11,413

14,919 3,457,945 248,620

12,000 3,733,484




(Expressed in thousands of Hong

Kong dollars)  (MABEETFTIIR)

The University

Balance - At 1 July 2019

Changes from Financing Cash Flows:
Decrease in Deferred Capital Funds
Bank Loans Obtained for On-
Lending to Staff

Repayment of Secured Loans

Repayment of Bank Loans for
On-Lending to Staff

Capital Element of Lease Rentals
Paid

Interest Element of Lease Rentals
Paid

Total Changes from Financing Cash
Flows

Other changes:

Increase in Lease Liabilities from
Entering into New Leases During
the Period

Interest Expenses (note 15.1)

Total Other Changes

Balance - At 30 June 2020

Total cash outflow for Leases
HERERLLEE

(c)

KE
Lease Deferred Bank Loans Secured Total
Liabilities Capital for _ Loans
(note 23) Funds ©On-Lending (note 25)
(note 27) to Staff
(note 25)
HEaRE BREsE ®BET AiER s
(MEE23) E %ﬁ%iz e
(Bfsro7) BITER .
(Hizt25) (PftEE25)
TECEEER 22,766 3,551,347 200,000 16,000 3,790,113
BEREREEE
EEEEESZHY - (22,915) - - (22,919)
EETHEES ZRT - - 39,100 - 39,100
M
(AR ER - - - (4000)  (4,000)
EEBETREEZ - - (1440) T (1,440)
IRITER
ER
EHESZAE  (442) - - - (442)
R 15
MAARTNEEE  (10873) (22915) 37,660  (4,000) (128)
Hith@s)
RIRARIMAFAS 1,170 - - - 1,470
meIMEEaRE
by}
FEZH (KMiEE15.1) 442 ) i i 442
M fhaE) 1,612 - - - 1,612
B TR
A 13,505 3,528,432 237,660 12,000 3,791,597

Amounts included in the cash flow statements for leases comprise the following:

HENREERERPEEUATEE -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MABE#ETFTTHIR)
The Group The University
ARG RE
2021 2020 2021 2020
Within Operating Cash Flows REERERD 435 1,169 377 1,169
Within Financing Cash Flows REEIRERD 15,707 16,486 9,999 10,873
16,142 17,655 10,376 12,042




22. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS IR R ETER
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JAZB#ETFITHIR)

The Group The University
RESEERS KE
2021 2020 2021 2020
Accounts Payable FE(TERFR 174,010 187,358 160,916 179,887
Other Creditors and Accruals HibETIRM A ETER 528,443 490,583 207,913 151,552
Deposits & Caution Money Received  #&5& RIRFLE 119,910 109,451 114,482 109,451
Current Accounts with Colleges EfRERIEM - - 374,676 304,068
Current Accounts with Subsidiaries M A E)EHREETR - 216,269 242,216 216,293
Amount due to UGC HEZERER 2,936 4,122 2,936 4,122

825,299 1,007,783 1,103,139 965,373
Less: Non-Current portion of Accounts & : FE(TERFR R FESR

Payable and Accruals ERIEREG 170 - - -
Current portion of Accounts FE(TER R R FESTE

Payable and Accruals EENER S 825,129 1,007,783 1,103,139 965,373

The Group and the University will settle the accounts payable and loans according to payment due date. For
the remaining contractual maturities of the accounts payable, please refer to note 33.1(ii).
AREBZELRABERBRIELERENE - OEESHE - BORRORBSHOBIN - FSREMEESS.13)

The current accounts with colleges and subsidaries are unsecured, interest-free and without fixed terms of
repayment.
ERFREMEMBABEREMRDEER - CENEBREEEHAR -

23. LEASELIABILITIES HS&E

The lease liabilities were repayable as follows:

HESERIMTANEES :
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (AE#FITHIR)

The Group The University
REBEE RE
2021 2020 2021 2020
Within one year —FR 10,416 12,217 8,836 8,318
After one year but within two years —EmMF 5,400 5,158 4,409 4,931
After two years but within five years ~ MZEALTF 3,127 256 1,674 256
After five years AFEMUE 15.110 ) i )

34,053 17,631 14,919 13,505




24. PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EEEFEE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JAZ#EFITHIR)

The Group The University
AEBEE A

2021 2020 2021 2020
Staff Leave Entitlements ESEREEER 557,920 519,682 548,441 515,122
Contract-end Gratuity and Long Service rimMiE KR 356,031 335409 329,063 320,108

Payments R#5E
Retirement Benefit Scheme Contributions IRRIERI SR 31,080 28,968 29,754 28,578
Salaries and Wages FEENTE 24,751 27,750 22,612 21,483
969,782 911,809 929,870 885,291

Payable: FE&T

Within 1 year R—ER 698,101 648,385 676,901 631,161
After 1 year R—Fi% 271,681 263,424 252,969 254,130

969,782 911,809 929,870 885,291




25,

LOANS AND BORROWINGS &=
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MAFE#EFITHIR)

The Group The University
REEE RE

2021 2020 2021 2020
Bank Loans for On-Lending to Staff (Note a) #f& TS Z SRITEM(FizEa)

Within One Year —FRN 248,620 237,660 248,620 237,660
Secured Loans (Notes b and c) BIRPER (M EEb Ac)
Within One Year —FR - - - -
Between One and Two Years —E_F 253,041 -[| 4,000 -
Between Two and Five Years “ERE 1,251,642 | 934,462|| 8,000/ 12,000
Over Five Years AFEME 2,492,134| (2,910,547 - -
3,996,817 3,845,009 12,000 12,000
Total Loans and Borrowings (EE 4,245,437 4,082,669 260,620 249,660
Less: Repayable within One Year and W —EZREEZ 248,620 237,660 248,620 237,660
Included in Current Liabilities mEai

Amount included in Non-current Liabilities —F&{EREZIERENEE 3,996,817 3,845,009 12,000 12,000

Notes BfzE:

(@)

(b)

(c)

The bank loans for on-lending to staff are repayable within twelve months and renewable annually subject to
the bank’s consent.

BETHARSZRITERERRR—F - MEZXRITAR - SEHUTEY -

The secured loans of the University comprise a start-up loan from the Government to run self-financing full time
accredited post-secondary programmes. The loan is interest-free, repayable in equal annual instalments over
10 years starting from February 2014. The loan with an outstanding amount of $12 million (2020: $12 million)
is secured by time deposits of the same amount.

ABNEEAEREE-TRRBAAEENER - LAERRZATEAREZRTE LRE - HKIEERR/REEM -

R—T-NFE_ARKRS+ETIEE - RE—T 587 (CF2FTF : —TEETNER - KBUERHEN
EHRTFMRIERIRR

In view of the development of COVID-19 epidemic, the Government granted a one-off interest-free deferral of
loan repayment for a period of two years to borrowing institutions under the Start-up Loan Scheme. The residual

instalments repayment will start again in February 2023.
HFE201 9 BBRBSEBHER - BAS "BHNREEMEE, TERNRRRER—RXMEEEEREEEEN
2k - FIBRHIETEE - ER_S_=F_HERFEEIHEE -

At 30 June 2021, the secured loans of the Group included a loan from the Government for the development of
the private teaching hospital of $3,985 million (2020: $3,833 million). The loan was secured by all the assets of
CUHK Medical Centre Limited wheresoever now or at any time hereafter belonging to CUHK Medical Centre

Limited for managing and operating the hospital and the benefit of all contracts and warranties relating to
them. The loan bears no interest for the first five years starting from the drawdown date of the first instalment.
Subsequently, it bears variable interest rate which is determined annually with reference to the Government’s
fiscal reserves with the Exchange Fund established under the Exchange Fund Ordinance. The first repayment
will commence from 19 March 2023.

RSB _—FA=1H  ABEENGRIEREE - EHEREE=TAENTEEER(CE=TF : =+/\E
=F=aBnMER ' UREZEMRBZEMR - ZEMUTRIREMEBAETEPXABEZhOLERATEEN
LERRNMEEEMFTEENNRENEEERR - ZENHAE—HERENARAELFERTZMATE - HiZ -
BFEERFE - BRSBHTEMBRHEERRIRE GMEEZIRA) RIMIIMNERESRFZERE  WikEFEE
7o BHERMER_S_=F=H+HM% -



26. DEFERRED INCOME

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MAZB#EFITHITR)
The Group
REEES
Earmarked Grants Capital Grants Grants from  Others Total
IEFERAREmhS and Government
AA&I* Block Agencies
Allocation Funds
EiEwmbnEm
oREE ~ NIEE - 2
Research  Others RMETRE BT HtE
R Hith BRI 1M Hfth UL
2021
Balance - Beginning 48R 451,134 158,825 1,455,511 732,105 441,402 3,238,977
of Year
Subventions Received/ E4U/FEIR 454,562 110,770 115,448 317,215 311,584 1,309,579
Receivable =41
Recognised as income ZANERMER (234.661)  (68,794) (38,912)  (221,452) (230,553)  (794,372)
in the year HIA
Transfer to EE T (14,625) (110) (116,471) (22,495) (19,481)  (173,182)
Deferred Capital Funds EEEE
Balance - End of Year %4585 656,410 200,691 1,415,576 805,373 502,952 3,581,002
To be recognised: ASHEERTE ¢
Within 1 year —FR 479,796 - 213,724 222,238 410,357 1,326,115
After 1 year — &% 176,614 200,691 1,201,852 583,135 92,595 2,254,887
656,410 200,691 1,415,576 805,373 502,952 3,581,002
2020
Balance - Beginning FEYEEER 319,391 167,153 1,432,663 706,297 132,673 2,758,177
of Year
Subventions Received/ SWI/FEU 373,186 56,609 182,224 186,751 458,409 1,257,179
Receivable =1:)
Recognised as income AKLEAER  (224774)  (64,743) (22,059)  (150,299) (124,227)  (586,102)
in the year HIUZA
Transfer to WEEE (16,669)  (194)  (137,317)  (10,644)  (25453)  (190,277)
Deferred Capital Funds BEEE
Balance - End of Year fE#&4E8% 451,134 158,825 1,455,511 732,105 441,402 3,238,977
To be recognised: S HERRTE -
Within 1 year —FRA 335,424 - 238,851 138,921 317,447 1,030,643
After 1 year —Fi& 115,710 158,825 1,216,660 593,184 123,955 2,208,334
451,134 158,825 1,455,511 732,105 441,402 3,238,977

* AA&I represents Alterations, Additions, Repairs and Improvements.



26. DEFERRED INCOME IR &5 (Continued #§)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ABEETFITHIR)
The University
rE
Earmarked Grants Capital Grants Grants from  Others Total
ETHEEEmE and Government
AA&I* Block Agencies
Allocation Funds
EEwpnsa
P2 ~ NN - M2
Research  Others NMETE T FTHAE
LRt Hith LRI N Hith R
2021
Balance - Beginning FH4EER 451,134 158,825 1,455,511 138,921 413,586 2,617,977
of Year
Subventions Received/ BEUWI/EU 454,562 110,770 115,448 288,482 310,290 1,279,552
Receivable i=1:)
Recognised as income ZNEREE (234,661)  (68,794) (38,912)  (197,549)  (220,510)  (760,426)
in the year HIUZA
Transfer to EEIRIE (14,625) (110) (116,471) (12,030) (19,481)  (162,717)
Deferred Capital Funds BEEE
Balance - End of Year ﬂfﬁgﬁ% 656,410 200,691 1,415,576 21 7,824 483,885 2,974,386
To be recognised: TS HEERTE -
Within 1 year —FR 479,796 - 213,724 217,824 370,116 1,281,460
After 1 year —Fig 176,614 200,691 1,201,852 - 113,769 1,692,926
656,410 200,691 1,415,576 217,824 483,885 2,974,386
2020
Balance - Beginning FEEER 319,391 167,153 1,432,663 113,113 131,843 2,164,163
of Year
Subventions Received/ BYS/FE 373,186 56,609 182,224 186,751 425,646 1,224,416
Receivable =i
Recognised as income ZASERATESR (224,774)  (64,743) (22,059)  (150,299) (118,450) (580,325)
in the year HIUZA
Transfer to EEIEE (16,669) (194) (137,317) (10,644) (25,453)  (190,277)
Deferred Capital Funds BEE&E
Balance - End of Year fFi&4es 451,134 158,825 1,455,511 138,921 413,586 2,617,977
To be recognised: TG HEERTE -
Within 1 year —FR 335,424 - 238,851 138,921 297,227 1,010,423
After 1 year —F1E 115,710 158,825 1,216,660 - 116,359 1,607,554
451,134 158,825 1,455,511 138,921 413,586 2,617,977

* AA&I represents Alterations, Additions, Repairs and Improvements.



27. DEFERRED CAPITAL FUNDS EREEESE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MAZE#EFITHIR)

The Group
REER
Earmarked Grants Capital Grants Grants from Others Total
IEERZRMHIE and Government
AA&I* Block  Agencies
Allocation Funds
BEEmbEn
DS ~ TNEE ~ #E
Research Others MIMEI]E - BEEE
T Hith BEpREwS B Hith e
Balance - 1 July 2019 —B-hEF
tRA—-B&® 15437 961 3,489,093 17,851 28,005 3,551,347
Transfer from Deferred BEELERD 16,669 194 137,317 10,644 25453 190,277
Income

Transfer to the Statement of BEZHEWZZER (10,667) (451) (181,361)  (9,936) (10,777) (213,192)
Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure

Balance - 30 June 2020 =TZ-THFKA

and 1 July 2020 =t+tAR=S=%

FEtRA—-B& 21439 704 3445049 18,559 42,681 3,528,432
Transfer from Deferred BEEERE 14625 110 116,471 22,495 19,481 173,182
Income

Transfer to the Statement of EEZHEUIIZZ (16,228) (174) (193,560)  (9,769) (15,738) (235,469)
Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure

Balance - 30 June 2021 =—FT=-—f
ANB=1+THa4&% 19,836 640 3,367,960 31,285 46,424 3,466,145

* AA&I represents Alterations, Additions, Repairs and Improvements.



27. DEFERRED CAPITALFUNDS  IEEZEEES (Continued &)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (JAZE#ETFITHIR)

The University

Ay
Earmarked Grants Capital Grants Grants from Others Total
IEEREHE and Government
AA&I* Block  Agencies
Allocation Funds
EEmpEH
G2 ~ INEE ~ #1(E
Research Others MH=TIE BURTHEAE
FleR Hith BB B Hith HBRE
Balance - 1 July 2019 —B-hEF
tRA—-B&®% 15437 961 3,489,093 17,851 28,005 3,551,347
Transfer from Deferred BREEWE 16,669 194 137,317 10,644 25453 190,277
Income

Transfer to the Statement of BEEZEWZER (10,667) (451) (181,361)  (9,936) (10,777) (213,192)
Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure

Balance - 30 June 2020 —T-FTFXKA

and 1 July 2020 =+HER=-B=F
FtA—-B&R 21439 704  3,445049 18,559 42,681 3,528,432
Transfer from Deferred EEEE S 14,625 110 116,471 12,030 19,481 162,717
Income

Transfer to the Statement of BEBEZFHEIIZFR (16,228) (174) (193,560)  (7,504) (15,738) (233,204)
Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure

Balance - 30 June 2021 =—¥=-—f
NB=TH%&SR 19,836 640 3,367,960 23,085 46,424 3,457,945

* AA&I represents Alterations, Additions, Repairs and Improvements.



28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Due to the publicly funded nature of the University
and its nine Colleges and the composition of their
Council (being drawn from private and public
organisations), the University and its nine Colleges
have received from time to time donations from
University Council members, key management
personnel and companies controlled or significantly
influenced by them. The receipts of such donations
have all been individually reported to the Council
and approved in accordance with the University’s
financial regulations.

All transactions relating to the purchases of
goods and services and capital projects involving
organisations in which a member of the University’s
Council may have an interest are conducted during
the normal course of business and in accordance
with the University’s financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures.

In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
there are the following material related party
transactions:

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

28.

RS 2 5

AABRENEERTIBLEED - FIAERESN
EEERSNERLERE  ABLHERTRE
ENE ABEREEAS - NEEFNATHZH
EAFENLSWEER - ELBRES R LA
EREQURIBABHMBERAMEERE -

ABHEIEEEEBENREERRBERE AERIERTAE
MTEABRESNE T @EFRNMIEFN - BiEL
R RBABNAERAEIEERBERET -

PRES MR E H AR NIRRT 5 MAGER - 5D
BUTHEBARS

(REEETFTIITR)

The University

N
2021 2020
(i) Income Received/Receivable (i) REHIEDSES/IERYES 71,445 54,764
from Subsidiaries
(ii) Expenses Paid/Payable to Subsidiaries (ii) ZMHEMTHBLINZEH 10,011 -

The Group and
the University

RBERERAE
2021 2020
(iii) Key Management Personnel (i) T EEBASHEHE
Compensation
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits ¥ NHMISHESERN 66,554 61,514
Post-employment benefits RUNIEF 6,988 6,662
73,542 68,176




28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 28. BABtAR %S (48
The Group and
the University
REEENAKE
2021 2020
(iv) Loans to Related Parties (iv) BT RIS
Loans to key management under the ABHREERETET
University’s Staff Loan Scheme (Note 29) FEEEAR(MEE 29)
Beginning of the year REN 14,700 18,400
Net loans granted/(repaid) during the year RERZFERIGEN) 3,750 (3,700)
End of the year RE#HE 18,450 14,700
29. STAFF LOANS 29. YHWEER

Staff loans, with interest at floating rates adjusted
by interest spreads and capped at other floating
rates, are available to eligible staff members of the
retirement scheme(s) operated by the University
who acts as the borrower from a bank. The bank
loan is repayable upon demand or at the expiry of
loan agreement at the end of each calendar year.

ARBUERITERLDRREHERTFEERABRARE
RTEIAMEEE - FIRSRBERABRNZSNER - A
NEMZEFRD LR - RERERBFFENER
AR H N EARBERTEE -

30. COMMITMENTS RiE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (JAZ#ETFITHITR)

Commitments outstanding at 30 June 2021 not provided for in the financial statements are as follows:

REFBZ—FXA=1TH @ REVBBRERERREINOT

31.

The Group The University
REBEE KE
2021 2020 2021 2020
Capital Expenditure Commitments ~ BZAEIE
Contracted for (=55 567,468 1,253,400 436,207 482,919
Authorised but not Contracted for EFRENREN 1,948,669 1,930,017 1,948,669 1,930,017
2,516,137 3,183,417 2,384,876 2,412,936

OPERATING LEASE RECEIVABLES BEERS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAE&#&F7T5l1R)
At 30 June 2021, the total future minimum lease income under non-cancellable operating leases is as follows:

RZBT—FRAZSTH - REFURRNEEHEE @ SRBINREEEWRABEINAT

The Group The University
REBEE RE

2021 2020 2021 2020

Within one year —5FR 41,322 19,419 15,369 16,355
After one year but within two years —EMF 16,693 3,678 9,279 3,565
After two years but within three years WZE=%F 1,598 1,890 935 1,890

i =z

After three years but within four years =ZEM&F ) 29 i 29
59,613 25,009 25,583 21,832




32.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The University is a government subvented tertiary
education institution established under the laws of
the Government which objects are to provide learning
and research in a wide range of undergraduate and
postgraduate programmes in technology, science,
commerce, arts and other areas. Its activities are
mainly funded by government grants, tuition fees,
donations, income generated from self-financing
activities and investment income.

The Group defines capital as including various
general and restricted fund balances. The various
funds of the Group represent the accumulated
unspent balance of subventions, fee income,
donations and investment returns. These funds
are managed according to the relevant grant and
funding conditions, where applicable, and the
Group’s investment and financial management
guidelines and procedures are established in
accordance with the relevant statutes of the Group
with the view of meeting the objects of the Group
and safeguarding the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

There has been no change in the Group’s capital
management practices as compared to prior year.
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements, except for the balance of
GDREF as disclosed in note 12.

32.

BXrER

FARBEETEEIITHREEE T RIN—FRERRE
BIWE EHERIE - STEREARRENARRRER
% - M8 B - XBREMRENEE RIS - K
BRI EERHBTNHENIE - 28 - IBEME - B
BEBEREENRARSEOREER

ABRENEREREE—RESVSREE - KER
RRNSIEEEHETREAWERNMEIE - WE - 18
MR NI EWmFTAER - ZEEEEREHEELER
MBS MIFRAIRRERE - MiRE - MBEEESIR
EFEREAEREIETRNRE EARER SRR
HNEEREERERRENEEERED -

FRBTEE 1 2P FRIR B — R R B RERE I - KBE
REMEAREEBCRETFMER - WRBENE - AN
FZHIREISFREMAOERZER o



33.

33.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

Financial instruments of the Group and the University
include bank deposits, investment in debt securities,
equity securities, unit trusts, limited partnerships
and alternative investments, which have exposure
to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency and equity
price risks arising in the normal course of the
Group’s and the University’s operations. These risks
are managed by the Group’s and the University’s
financial management policies and practices as
described below.

Bank deposits, investment in debt securities,
equity securities, unit trusts, limited partnerships
and alternative investments

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in a financial loss to the Group and
the University. The Group’s and the University’s
exposure to credit risk is mainly attributable
to the deposits they maintained with various
financial institutions and investment securities
held by fund managers, including debt securities
carried at amortised costs and trading securities.
The Group and the University established their
guidelines to minimise the credit risk associated
with these financial assets and considered the
ECL is immaterial. Debt securities carried at
amortised costs are all at “investment grade”
credit ratings as assigned by international credit
rating agencies at the time of purchase. Trading
securities are all of good investment grade
and are held through appointed professional
investment managers who would manage the
portfolios through comprehensive monitoring
systems. The Group and the University have
no significant concentration of credit risk,
with exposure spread over a large number of
counterparties.

Internal policies have also been set up to reduce
credit risk associated with bank deposits. Such
policies do not only restrict deposits to be placed
at Authorised Institutions (Note) of good credit
ratings but also address concentration risk by
limiting the total amount deposited with each
institution.

Credit risk associated with loans and other
receivables is immaterial to the Group and
the University and all doubtful receivables are
adequately provided for.

(Note: Authorised Institutions are deposit-taking
institutions that are licensed by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority to operate in Hong Kong.)

33. TRERERROAEE

AERENASNERM T ABERTER @RS
BAES - BEEREENIRE - REGBIRENSE
154 - EAREED - BLEER T RFMEENREREE
EEREE  REEEEE - FIRERS - JMNERR LIRS
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(i) Liquidity risk (ii) mENEZEE

The Group and the University have sufficient AREBEENABEEANREE S AR EEEMR
funds to finance its ongoing working capital =, Wil ARG THERIBENARRREESSNE
requirements. Measures are implemented to B, YRR EEEORTES ROEESENTSE
regularly monitor the current and expected s, | ERE T

liquidity requirements of the Group and the
University, ensuring that sufficient cash reserves
and readily realisable marketable securities are
maintained to meet its liquidity requirements.

The following table presents the earliest NF-BRIHABERRABGEAZBRRERE
settlement dates of the Group’s and the ZTHE - WWEREHZARIFRREERE(EEUNEH
University’s financial liabilities at the end of the FIESENF BT - NSNFRZENFIESTEF
reporting period, which are based on contractual 8 BiRIEE AN EFIREtE)

undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on current rates at the end of
the reporting period):

(@) The Group ~ KZBEE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAB#TFTHIR)
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BREHNZAKRIFRREFEE
2021

Carrying  Within 1 Year More than More than 5 Years Total
amount or 1 Year 2 Years and Amount
on Demand  but within but within More

2 Years 5 Years
—5FR EE—F Ee—F kit
REEE  ggEk  E-&#x EAEFA 0 MUE aE

Accounts Payable and  FE{TERFR M FERT 825,299 825,129 170 - - 825,299
Accruals ==

Provision for Employee (&S &% 969,782 698,101 226,946 44,409 326 969,782
Benefits

Loans and Borrowings &3 4,245,437 248,620 568,459 1,603,616 2,755,346 5,176,041

Lease Liabilities HEas 34,053 11,416 6,218 5,231 22,976 45,841

6,074,571 1,783,266 801,793 1,653,256 2,778,648 7,016,963

2020

Carrying  Within 1 Year More than  More than 5 Years Total
amount or 1 Year 2 Years and Amount
on Demand  but within but within More

2 Years 5 Years
—FR EE—F BE—F h%F
BEEH gwEk  E-FR BEAFR Nk @@

Accounts Payable and FE(TERER R FES 1,007,783 1,007,783 - - - 1,007,783
Accruals EH

Provision for Employee EEEF R 911,809 648,539 221,063 41,499 708 911,809
Benefits

Loans and Borrowings R 4,082,669 237,660 - 1,656,496 3,270,925 5,165,081

Lease Liabilities HEaE 17,631 12,502 5,226 256 - 17,984

6,019,892 1,906,484 226,289 1,698,251 3,271,633 7,102,657

os



(b) The University RE2
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAE#EFIT5I7R)

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BREAZRFRREREE
2021

Carrying  Within 1 Year More than  More than 5 Years Total
amount or 1 Year 2 Years and Amount
on Demand  but within but within More

2 Years 5 Years
—FR  @BE—F RB-F AfF
FEEHE gpmr  E-ER BREA NE 0 @5

Accounts Payable and  FE(TERFR M FERT 1,103,139 1,103,139 - - - 1,103,139
Accruals ={=:!
Provision for Employee &S {@H# (i 929,870 676,901 215,932 36,711 326 929,870
Benefits
Loans and Borrowings  f&#k 260,620 248,620 4,000 8,000 - 260,620
Lease Liabilities HEaE 14,919 9,053 4,481 1,684 - 15,218
2,308,548 2,037,713 224,413 46,395 326 2,308,847
2020

Carrying  Within 1 Year More than  More than 5 Years Total
amount or 1 Year 2 Years and amount
on Demand  but within but within More

2 Years 5 Years
—FR @BE—5 BE-E AOF
REE®E  gpEk  E-&h EAFER 0 ME @@

Accounts Payable and FETERFRRFERTERR 965,373 965,373 - - - 965,373
Accruals
Provision for Employee {ES#EFI%E(H 885,291 631,161 215,295 38,127 708 885,291
Benefits
Loans and Borrowings {53 249,660 237,660 - 12,000 - 249,660
Lease Liabilities HEaE 13,505 8,542 4,990 256 - _ 13788
2,113,829 1,842,736 220,285 50,383 708 2,114,112
(iii) Interest rate risk (iii) 2= @B
As to interest-bearing financial assets, the Group HRESNBINBRNEREE  KEBELAES
and the University hold fixed-rate bank deposits RisAEEMBTEMRNERES -
and debt securities.
The Group’s interest-bearing financial liabilities at AEBERNRAERIEEEANTEESRHARA - K
the end of the reporting period are not significant. EA 3 m A T S| 2R A ST HE SR BN R S 4 R ER ke
The Group does not expect short-term fluctuations WS B R N DI o

in market interest rates will have significant impact
on the Group’s results of operations.



During the year under review, the Group and the
University have no interest rate risk from interest-
bearing loan since the only interest-bearing
loan taken out by the University is for the sole
purpose of operating a staff loan scheme and any
fluctuations in market interest rates only affect
the staff loan borrowers.

The following tables indicate the effective interest
rates of these interest-bearing financial assets:

(a) The Group FRESERRE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

RAMBFE - KEEERAB)RERTEERM
ZENREINTZE - ARELFEEREARET
feEsE - MEENAREREHERNETHRIE -

MR —ERFIEERIF BAERMEE CBRREFER

(BT TTIIR)
2021 2020
Effective Carrying Effective  Carrying
Interest Amount Interest Amount
Rate Rate
% p.a. % p.a.
BERFENEX KRESHE BREMNX REEHE

Fixed Rate Notes and Deposits

(b) The University rE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

EEEBNER 1.77

19,989,565 242 19,311,792
(BT ITHIR)
2021 2020
Effective Carrying Effective  Carrying
Interest Amount Interest Amount
Rate Rate
% p.a. % p.a.
BERFMNEX KRESHE BRFENX REEHE

Fixed Rate Notes and Deposits TEERBRF

™= 1.93

17,815,284

266 16,767,974




As at 30 June 2021, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the Group’s
surplus by approximately $99,590,000 (2020:
$96,559,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to interest rate risk
for investments in time deposits in existence at
that date. The Group may be exposed to interest
rate risk indirectly via its holding in the investment
portfolios which hold debt instruments. Increase/
decrease in investment income from these
investment portfolios arising from interest
rate change however is not considered in the
sensitivity analysis above due to insufficient
information provided by fund managers. The
50 basis points increase/decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period
until the end of the next reporting period.

(iv) Currency risk

The functional currency of the Group and the
University is Hong Kong dollars (“‘HKD”). Both the
Group’s and the University’s monetary assets are
denominated mainly in HKD and United States
dollars (“USD”) while their monetary liabilities
are predominantly in HKD. Those assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than
HKD and USD are not material.

About 29% (2020: 27%) of the Group’s and 31%
(2020: 28%) of the University’s financial assets
(including cash, bank deposits with banks,
debt, equity securities and investments) are
denominated in USD, but it is considered that
risk of movement in exchange rate between
the HKD and the USD is insignificant as the
HKD is currently pegged to the USD under the
linked exchange rate system adopted by the
Government.

The following tables show the amounts of
financial assets (including cash, bank deposits
with banks, debts and investments) denominated
in various currencies at the end of the reporting
period:

RIBZ-FxXA=1+H  BRAEHEMTEEE
BRETE - WARENEI AT - KB
REANBHFESRINBEIOATFAERHAER(=
B2F  ATFAEATREEATR) °

LR E AN ERERAFRNEENGEA S
% WERARARRERZBNRITEMAEZN
FRER - ARESEEARERHENEY - ME
MREFMBZEFREATEECRER@NE
ARBEERU ENSRESHD - BMEPI A+
MrREEEEBNEETEAEH LB RNE
o REE R

(iv) SMEERLER

AREBRERABNINERERB LB  EBMHEEN
BREEETRE  MEBMEBRENERSE - B
MEEMSRMMSEENERELFAK -

AEBRERABRBEURTRGEEBNERNEE
AHBHEREERENEILZ=TN SBZF
F:EALZ=TL) IGa=1— (CZBZFTF
BTN (BERE - FRURERITER - Rig
RERIRE) - BEEERNITHERFEMNETE
BB TTMBRERFIET - KEEEERR/ET
BB EREEZEABRTERX -

MF—BRINEEEAUSEERREEERNE
MEECER(BRERE - FRRERTHER - BB
RigE) :



(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(BT TIIR)

(@) The Group REBER
2021 2020
Amount % of total Amount % of total
value of value of
financial financial
assets assets
L] HARERE =8 HARERE
Currency E#& EMESH ENESL
HKD R 18,284,550 63 17,241,730 66
usD ETT 8,510,555 29 6,945,004 27
RMB ARHE 1,876,465 7 1,427,988 6
Euro Ex 7T 99,736 - 112,016 -
Pounds Sterling S 63,959 - 46,930 -
Others Hith 183,640 1 153,454 1
29,018,905 100 25,927,122 100
(b) The University X2
2021 2020
Amount % of total Amount % of total
value of value of
financial financial
assets assets
Gk L] hARERE &% MR ERE
Currency K& ENESL I=3:01=Pa 54
HKD i 16,009,204 61 14,711,597 64
usD ETT 8,039,814 31 6,466,389 28
RMB ARHE 1,699,667 7 1,420,467 6
Euro Ex 7T 99,734 - 112,016 1
Pounds Sterling e 55,362 - 39,269 -
Others Hith 169,419 1 147,093 1
26,073,200 100 22,896,831 100

ABEERABHEUAREREEERNENEE

About 7% of the Group’s and 7% of the University’s
financial assets are denominated in RMB (2020:
6% and 6% respectively). As the percentages of
financial assets denominated in currencies other
than HKD, RMB and USD to the total financial
assets of the Group and the University were 1%
and 1% respectively as at 30 June 2021 (2020:
1% and 2% respectively), exposure to foreign
currency risk is not significant.

ARAAMLEEREERENEIZCEARBDLZ L (=
BITF  FAEBEDLZARBRLZIN) - RZFZ—
FARA=TH » XBERLABUEE - ARBHRE
TN EBGEC EMEERREMEEESRIR
BEAZ—REAZ— (ZFFF : FRIREES
K—REBLZT)  MABRENABUREAZHI

FEE o e - B

o



(v) Equity price risk

The Group and the University are exposed to
equity price risk arising primarily from equity
investments and unit trusts classified under
trading securities (see note 17). The equity
price risk of the investments is managed by
professional managers through their own risk
management and assessment policies. The
investment managers’ investment strategies
are governed by the University’s investment
and asset allocation guidelines. The Group and
the University also monitor the risk exposure by
reviewing periodic reports from the custodians
and investment managers. The Group’s and the
University’s investments in equity securities are
spread over major stock markets in the world.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices
of the respective listed equity securities and
unit trusts had been 5% higher/lower, with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s and
the University’s surplus for the year would have
been increased/decreased by $188,846,000
(2020: $137,656,000) and $155,469,000 (2020:
$114,523,000) respectively as a result of the
changes in fair value of the listed equity securities
and unit trusts.

The following tables show the breakdown of
the values of the Group’s and the University’s
investments in listed equity securities and
unit trusts by trading market at the end of the
reporting period:

(v)

IREEREERR

ARBRERASFENNKREEREREERE
AERUEERS THRETESLREMERESE (
KizE17) - REEBERBERIRECEEBMM
T ARG LR EEBRESRE - MEKRE
EIRHIET I & RIS R R IR B X B AT BIRT IR E &
EENES| - ABRERABTEERTEME
R B IRNE AR S U A AR - KBERERA
BFRAENRAESREMERESAHRIERE
ERRETS

REER B EHREESREMEEETNER
EAITHRESZE » EHMM— T ERREIFT
BHERT  ABEEDABREANZER R
FHREESRBEMERESNATEESES - 9
gL —BNAFNAENTEERTT (252
BFE: —B=FEtEATREATOIA—ERET
FEA+ABATT (CB2SF —F—-TOE
A+ZE=Fm) -

UTF—EBRINEGEEARBRENABREAEZR
Shis LhRENEMETESNEE :

(a) The Group FEARKEE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (JAEHETFTTHIR)
2021 2020
Equities  Unit Trusts Total Equities Unit Trusts Total
Market Tl BAEs BUEREE 05 000 BRAES EREREE 08
United States <& 1,597,856 425,716 2,023,572 1,118,169 157,974 1,276,143
Hong Kong BsE 545,552 624,000 1,169,552 454,678 529106 983,784
Europe R 345,316 - 345,316 294 592 - 294,592
Asia Pacific IKE: 158,888 35,834 194,722 46,849 17,463 64,312
excluding AR
Hong Kong
Others Hith 43,794 - 43,794 128,762 5530 134,292
2,691,406 1,085,550 3,776,956 2,043,050 710,073 2,753,123




(b) The University

KRE

investments

There may be frequent short-term fluctuations in the
value of the limited partnerships and the alternative
investments during the durations of the investment
horizons. Both types of investments are under
the close scrutiny of the University Administration
and the University’s Finance Committee and
Investment Sub-committee. Professional fund
managers handling these investments have ample
experience in administering endowment funds of
prestigious private universities in the United States.
They manage the investment portfolios by using
comprehensive monitoring systems to minimise
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency
risk and equity price risk, where applicable, of
the underlying assets through diversifications of
their investment portfolios, frequent on-site due
diligence visits, proprietary quantitative analyses
and other relevant measures. The funds deployed
for these two categories of investment are of
non-UGC source, mainly comprising donations
and University’s own cash reserves. Short-term
diminution in the fair values of these investments
would not have significant impact on the Group’s
daily operations.

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT IT5I7R)
2021 2020
Equities  Unit Trusts Total Equities  Unit Trusts Total
Market 5 AES BufEtEs @5 BAES BuEtEE: @8
United States = 1,652,759 336,186 1,888,945 1,093,357 145,870 1,239,227
Hong Kong & 133,530 549,133 682,663 108,779 486,478 595,257
Europe BRI 335,085 - 335,085 283,094 - 283,094
Asia Pacific EAXE 158,888 - 158,888 46,849 - 46,849
excluding AR
Hong Kong
Others Hith 43,794 - 43,794 126,033 - 126,033
2,224,056 885,319 3,109,375 1,658,112 632,348 2,290,460
33.2 Limited partnerships and alternative 33.2 [RESBRERSEESE
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(i)

The following table shows the amounts of asset (i) U F—EBRIIHREEHREGBITEEESTN
allocation in the limited partnerships at the end £EF
of the reporting period:

The Group and the University REBERENAE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAE#FIT5I7R)

2021 2020
Amount Amount

e % 2% %
Hedge Funds HinEE 463,995 17 401,435 20
Cash e 144,398 6 (21,028) (1)
Private Equity FAERE 679,031 25 533,388 26
Real Estate EithE 393,706 15 330,542 16
Fixed Income EE2WA 183,090 7 198,806 10
International Equity IRBRIER 739,883 28 550,540 27
Natural Resources RAEIR 22,901 1 17,031 1
Others Hith 38,350 1 20,019 1
Total #aE 2,665,354 100 2,030,733 100

The following table shows the amounts of (i) MF—BRIIEREEH SEITEEESRNE
asset allocation in alternative investments 55

at the end of the reporting period:

The Group and the University REBEENKE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LA#E#FT5I7R)

2021 2020
Amount o, Amount o
£ ° S5 °
Hedge Funds HinEE 496,303 55 390,907 61
Real Estate EitE 243,422 27 129,414 20
Private Equity ths3hete 166,885 18 120,548 19

Total Mg 906,610 100 640,869 100




33.3 Fair value measurement

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 30
June 2021 and 2020.

The fair values of listed equity, debt securities and
unit trusts are based on quoted market bid prices
at the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of unlisted equity-linked notes
are based on the valuations provided by the
counterparty financial institutions.

Fair values for debt securities carried at amortised
costs are based on their trading values in the
secondary market on or nearest to the end of the
reporting period.

Since the limited partnership investments and the
alternative investments are not readily marketable,
the University management determines their fair
values based on the capital account statements
provided by the General Partner of the partnership
and the administrators or investment managers
of the alternative investments. However, such
estimated fair values may differ from the values that
would have been determined had an open market
for these investments existed.

HKFRS13, Fair value measurement defined the
category of three-level fair value hierarchy. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in valuation technique
as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
siginificant unobservable inputs.

The table below analyses financial instruments,
measured at fair values as at the end of the
respective reporting periods on a recurring basis,
by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the
fair value measurements are categorised:

33.3 ARBEEE
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(a) Financial assets carried at fair value

BROnEEIRNERMEE

The Group FERELEE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A EHETFTTHIR)
2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Fih— FHR= Eh= ke
Trading Securities ESEE 5,087,609 162,342 - 5,249,951
Unlisted Equity Securities JE LR ANEES - - 8,046 8,046
Limited Partnership Investments BREG®EE - - 2,665,354 2,665,354
Alternative Investments BEERE - . 906,610 906,610
Total #azg 5,087,609 162,342 3,580,010 8,829,961
2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E EH= EFR= iR
Trading Securities EEES 3,514,818 136,489 - 3,651,307
Unlisted Equity Securities JEETRRRASEE - - 7,913 7,913
Limited Partnership Investments [R&E& 158 - _ 2,030,733 2,030,733
Alternative Investments BaEins - - 640,869 640,869
Total #azE 3,514,818 136,489 2,679,515 6,330,822
The University K2
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TTIIR)
2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Eih— FR= ER= iz
Trading Securities EBERS 4,327,130 137,654 - 4,464,784
Unlisted Equity Securities JE LR AEE - - 8,046 8,046
Limited Partnership Investments REG®EE - - 2,665,354 2,665,354
Alternative Investments BiEigE - - 906,610 906,610
Total #azE 4,327,130 137,654 3,580,010 8,044,794
2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Eih— EF 1) EB= B
Trading Securities o EEES 2,934,069 115,484 - 3,049,553
Unlisted Equity Securities JE LR ANEE - - 7,913 7,913
Limited Partnership Investments RESBIZE - - 2,030,733 2,030,733
Alternative Investments SiEigsE - - 640,869 640,869
Total imzg 2,934,069 115,484 2,679,515 5,729,068




During the year there were no transfers between
financial instruments in Level 1 and Level 2.

The fair value of the securities under Level 2
is determined by reference to the prices at the
reporting date provided by the fund managers and
have been translated using the foreign currency at
the end of the reporting period where appropriate.

The following table shows a reconciliation from
the beginning balances to the ending balances
as for the fair value measurements in Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy for both the Group and
the University:

The Group and the University =~ FE3ELEE T KBS

AEFERLBERGESFHR—HER-—ZEZE -

BREZRESNAREBENSEESEIEMRMCE
HREEMET - LEARSHRCERTE -

MF—BRINITABEELABRBERLAEBESTR
ZHERM TR FNEFREREE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT ITHIR)
2021
Opening balance as at 1 July 2020 FREER 2,679,201
Total gain included in the Statements of EEETEEEREERD 774,626
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure HIAB U
Additions AR 197,406
Disposals HE (71,223)
Closing balance as at 30 June 2021 FERLEER 3,580,010
2020
Opening balance as at 1 July 2019 TSR 2,607,355
Total gain included in the Statements of ESEEZEIEERT 20,893
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure OEEIEE
Additions B 180,941
Disposals HE (129,988)
Closing balance as at 30 June 2020 FHREERR 2,679,201

All gains and losses for the fair value measurements
in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy were
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure for both the Group and
the University for the years ended 30 June 2021
and 30 June 2020.

AREERERABHENEFR=8MTH  &#Z=F=
—FXRA=TEAZFFFAA=THNEREH
FEMNRER -



The Level 3 financial assets of the Group and the
University are the unlisted equity securities and the
investments in the three limited partnerships and the
alternative investments arranged by an investment
consultant in the United States as detailed in note
33.2.

The Level 3 financial assets of the Group and the
University are not traded in active markets. In the
absence of an active market, an investment’s fair
value is estimated on the basis of an analysis of the
investee’s financial position and results, risk profile,
prospects and other factors, as well as by reference
to market valuations for similar entities quoted in
an active market. Given the bespoke nature of the
analysis in respect of each holding, it is not practical
to quote a range of key unobservable inputs.

The fair value of unlisted equity investments in Level
3 is determined based on the attributable net asset
values. The significant unobservable input includes
the attributable net asset value and the fair value
increases with the increase in the attributable net
asset values.

Although the Group and the University are of
the view that fair value measurements in Level
3 financial assets based on the capital account
statements provided by the General Partner of the
three limited partnerships and the administrators or
investment managers of the alternative investments
are appropriate, the use of different methodologies
or assumptions by the underlying investment
managers engaged by the limited partnerships and
the University could lead to different measurements
of the fair values. The US-based firm of investment
consultant’s advice has been sought and its
analysis of returns of widely-used market indices for
alternative investments (i.e. funds of hedge funds,
private equity funds, real estate funds and natural
resources funds) against general conditions of
investment markets suggests that while the returns
of these indices are historical and past performance
is not a guarantee of future results, these indices
can be applied to a simple overall quantitative
sensitivity analysis relating to the fair values of
major alternative investments in the Group’s and
the University’s Level 3 financial assets.

Assuming that

(i) the widely-used market indices for funds
of hedge funds, private equity funds, real
estate funds and natural resources funds had
increased/decreased by 5% and the fair values
of assets under “Fixed Income” and “Others”
of the Level 3 financial assets had increased/
decreased by 5%; and
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(i) the prices of international markets equities had
been 5% higher/lower,

with all other variables held unchanged, the fair
values of the Group’s and the University’s Level
3 financial assets, and hence the Group’s and
the University’s surplus would have increased/

(i) RERH/FEHERENER LA/ THRESZ
bl

MEMITSNERFRHTE - KERERABNEFR=
K EREENAABEMABREELABREANZELR
SEMEIO—BLTAEER (CF=FF : —G=
F=Bh T+ ER) -

decreased by approximately $179,000,000 (2020:
$133,960,000).

FURAREETIRNEMEE

(b) Financial assets carried at other than fair value

The Group and the University =~ KEZEZBEL; KES

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AEHEFITHIR)
Fair value measurements as at
30 June 2021
R=B-—FxA=1+H
Carrying Fair value mERRAERR Carrying Fair value

at30June Level1 Level2 Level 3 amountat at 30 June

30 June 2020 2020
RISTSF RISTE

amount at

30 June 2021 2021
REBZ—F RIF"—F

ANB=1H A~B=+H ANA=t+H A~B=1+H
KIEREE HAREE SH— FH- ER= WERESE MNAREE
Debt securities RSB ASET
d at = ==F
meastred a BfEES 2,162,746 2,238,857 922,637 1,316,220 2,694,121 2,769,293

amortised cost

The fair value of the securities under Level 2
is determined by reference to the prices at the
reporting date provided by the banks and have
been translated using the foreign currency at the
end of the reporting period where appropriate.

BREZAESNARBEDSERITHRIEHCERED
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33.4 Interests in investment funds

The University holds interests in investment funds
investing in the following asset classes. The purpose
of these investment funds is to generate investment
income for the University. These investment funds
are managed by professional fund managers.

The table below sets out the interests held by the
University in these investment funds. The maximum
exposure to loss is the carrying amount of the
financial assets held.

Investment fund classes

33.4 IEETANELR

ABEERENTIEEGIIREE SN - BEIR
EESNENZERASHIUIENA - BERERER
HERESEEMEE -

UF—EBRINLABHEERERSZ#En - IRETEM
RANEXERSREENREE -

2021

Carrying amount
included in financial
assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Number of
investee
investment
funds

REESER HITEESE CIEESENUAR
HE EEJRNEREE
HIREEEE
HKD’million
BEETT
Equities [} ES 17 1,934
Fixed Income EEUWA 2 71
Hedge Funds HhES 13 496
Real Estate EithE 9 167
Private Equity ThERtE 9 243
Limited Partnership RESBIRE 7 2,665
Total Hagm 576
2020
Number of  Carrying amount
investee included in financial
investment assets at fair value
Investment fund classes funds through profit or loss

BEEEER FIREES CsEESEMNUAR
HE EESIRNEREE
HIREEE
HKD’million
BEET
Equities = 14 1,283
Fixed Income EBIA 3 67
Hedge Funds i EE 13 391
Real Estate EHiE 8 129
Private Equity B 11 121
Limited Partnership [RESBIRE 9 2,031
4,022

Total FEE]




34.

The carrying amount of such investments included
in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
is the same as the fund price per unit multiplied by
number of units held, or the total net assets if the unit
information is not available. The carrying amount
constitutes less than 1% of the appropriate total
net assets of the underlying investment funds as at
30 June 2021 (2020: less than 1%). Such carrying
amount represents the maximum exposure of the
University at the end of the reporting period.

All the above investment funds are passive
investments only. The University has no control of,
influence on or financial support to any of these
funds. The University can redeem the above
investment funds within one business day to
one year, depending on the requirement of each
investment fund.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group’s and the University’s fixed assets
are depreciated on a straight line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into
account their estimated residual value. The Group
and the University review the estimated useful
lives and residual values of the assets annually
in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expense to be recorded during any reporting period.
The useful lives and residual values are based on
management’s historical experience with similar
assets and, where applicable, taking into account
anticipated equipment upgrade and replacement.
The depreciation charges for future periods are
adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.

The Group and the University have a large value
of investments that are not classified as Level
1 financial assets under HKFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement. Except for investments in minority
stakes in unlisted companies, the valuations
have been determined based on reference prices
provided by fund managers or the capital account
statements provided by the General Partner of
the limited partnerships and the administrators or
investment managers of the alternative investments.

As the valuation of investments reflects movements
in their estimated fair values, fair value gains or
losses may fluctuate or reverse until the investments
are sold, mature or are realised upon redemption.
The potential impact of the fair value change of
Level 3 financial assets on the Group’s and the
University’s Statements of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure is disclosed in note 33.3 (a).

34.

RIEFBZ—FXB=1TH CiEEaNUAIREE
JIRNEMEENRESRESEMESERRUE
BEME - NERBEMENF - BREEFEMER -
RESHIGERREESCRFEEI 1% (2T
TE: DPR1%) - ZREAEERRABREEEHTRE
BZREEE

M _EFRBIREEEMERENURE - KEREESH &
EiRHEMMIE B G U EEMESE - REFEIRE
BEEMNIRFAR - KEUTURDPR—ETERIF SR
—FHREA - BRI EEE -

iR B {5t B Fl i

ABERELARBNEEEE - SMEMTTAFRAE
BREE - MERHNETIRE - 85F - ABEERARE
EEEEEEENTAFRAZRGEENRESES:
FEARNTESRL - TAFRAZREERENEE
BHRERELUEENEER - REEBERMBIREANE
& - MMEMERTREEANE - RRFHITERR
SRR -

AERERABREEEAMABREEM R SR
$13F T AREERTE ) FEER—SRMEENIRE -
BT IE LR ASIMD IR ERIRES) - BREGERE
ERCECRE - IRESBEENEEBARSER
ERHEYHESEE NS EMNETRBRET -

HRIRENEERRET LA ENEE) - EREHE
BIHAR OIS IRAT - QA ERNI R E R T R IRENE
P - EM=EREEN LA EEBHABRERA
DEEWSZRWBETENRHEE 33.3(a)hHKE -



35. EE B -_—GFAA=1tTHLEFECHEGBBMEKE
MEMEET - AT ERI R RETRELENRE

35. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

HESUBHRERBHA - FESHASRHSIEER
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ok TRERER) ) o RFHERI IR ERIRBE—S ——
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KRR - ZEFEATHADERARABEIEMNER

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
and a new standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance
contracts, which are not yet effective for the year
ended 30 June 2021 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These include
the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before 1 January 2022

Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current 1 January 2023

RT3 B ZE IR
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The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these developments is
expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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